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Financial Review

Three months ended Twelve months ended

($ millions, except per share amounts, unaudited) Dec. 31, 
2014

Dec. 31, 
2013

Sept. 30, 
2014

Dec. 31, 
2014

Dec. 31, 
2013

Revenue $755.4 $552.1 $770.6 $2,703.9 $2,115.5

Operating income* 104.6 35.5 112.4 260.7 179.6

Profit / (loss) 4.9 (20.8) 41.6 (5.0) (45.9)

Earnings / (loss) per share (basic) $0.03 ($0.14) $0.28 ($0.03) ($0.31)

(diluted) $0.03 ($0.14) $0.28 ($0.03) ($0.31)

Adjusted profit / (loss) * 33.0 (15.8) 41.8 30.0 (36.3)

Adjusted profit / (loss) per share*  (basic) $0.22 ($0.11) $0.28 $0.20 ($0.24)

(diluted) $0.22 ($0.11) $0.28 $0.20 ($0.24)

Funds provided by operations*  90.1 30.0 114.0 229.6 130.0

Notes:  

* Trican makes reference to operating income, adjusted profit/(loss) and funds provided by operations. These measures are not recognized under International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS). Management believes that, in addition to profit/(loss), operating income, adjusted profit/(loss) and funds provided by operations are useful supplemental measures. Operating income pro-

vides investors with an indication of profit/(loss) before depreciation and amortization, foreign exchange gains and losses, other income, finance costs and income tax expense. Adjusted profit/

(loss) provides investors with information on profit/(loss) excluding one-time non-cash charges, the impact of foreign currency gains/losses and the non-cash effect of stock-based compensation 

expense. Funds provided by operations provide investors with an indication of cash available for capital commitments, debt repayments and other expenditures. Investors should be cautioned 

that operating income, adjusted profit/(loss), and funds provided by operations should not be construed as an alternative to profit/(loss) determined in accordance with IFRS as an indicator of 

Trican’s performance. Trican’s method of calculating operating income, adjusted profit/(loss) and funds provided by operations may differ from that of other companies and accordingly may not 

be comparable to measures used by other companies.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2014

The following discussion and analysis of the financial 
condition and results of operations of the Company has 
been prepared taking into consideration information 
available to February 25, 2015, and should be read in 
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and 
accompanying notes.

overview
Headquartered in Calgary, Alberta, Trican has operations 
in Canada, the United States, Russia, Kazakhstan, Australia, 
Saudi Arabia, Colombia and Norway. Trican provides a 
comprehensive array of specialized products, equipment 
and services that are used during the exploration and 
development of oil and gas reserves. 
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FOURTH QUARTER HIGHLIGHTS
Consolidated revenue for the fourth quarter of 2014 was 
$755.4 million, an increase of 37% compared to the fourth 
quarter of 2013. The adjusted consolidated profit was $33.0 
million and adjusted diluted profit per share was $0.22 
compared to an adjusted loss of $15.8 million and adjusted 
diluted loss per share of $0.11 in the same period of 2013. 
Funds provided by operations were $90.1 million compared 
to $30.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2013. 

Our Canadian operations generated quarterly revenue 
of $342.9 million and operating income of $74.8 million 
during the fourth quarter of 2014 compared to revenue of 
$286.9 million and operating income of $53.1 million in the 
fourth quarter of 2013. Canadian revenue and operating 
income benefitted from strong activity levels throughout 
the Western Canadian Sedimentary Basin combined with a 
continued increase in fracturing intensity and demand per 
well. Despite the strong quarterly results, activity declined 
substantially near the end of the fourth quarter with rig 
count falling approximately 50% over the last two weeks of 
December. Although a decline was expected, the extent of 
the slow-down exceeded expectations as we began to see 
the impact of lower oil prices on pressure pumping activity. 

Our U.S. operations generated fourth quarter revenue of 
$340.7 million, an increase of 96% compared to the fourth 
quarter of 2013. Operational improvements in the U.S. 
combined with an increase in fracturing demand provided 
opportunities to deploy additional fracturing crews and 
led to strong equipment utilization during the fourth 
quarter of 2014. Strong equipment utilization combined 
with improved sand logistics and cost management led to 
a 1500 basis point increase in year-over-year U.S. operating 

margins. We reached our goal of exceeding 15% operating 
margins in November and then saw a seasonal slowdown in 
the second half of December. 

Our international operations generated quarterly revenue 
of $71.8 million and operating income of $6.7 million during 
the fourth quarter of 2014 compared to revenue of $91.8 
million and operating income of $6.8 million in the fourth 
quarter of 2013. Fourth quarter operating conditions in 
Russia are usually impacted by extreme cold temperatures; 
however, similar to 2013, our Russian customers remained 
active in order to complete 2014 work programs despite the 
cold weather. The devaluation of the Russian ruble relative 
to the Canadian dollar had a significant impact on the 
fourth quarter financial results for our Russian operations. 
The ruble weakened by 36% relative to the Canadian 
dollar on a year-over-year basis, which directly impacted the 
Canadian dollar revenue and operating income of this region.  

Our fourth quarter results include asset impairment write-
downs of $12.4 million. The write-downs include $5.4 
million relating to microseismic software, $5.0 million of 
goodwill and equipment associated with our coiled tubing 
operations in Canada, and $2.0 million relating to cementing 
assets in Australia. 

We regret to report on the recent and sudden passing of 
Robert Hoskins, President of our U.S. operations. Robert had 
become a valuable member of Trican’s senior management 
team and will be sincerely missed inside and outside the 
organization. Our thoughts and condolences are with 
Robert’s family and friends at this time. 

Effectively immediately, Sam Daniel will be assuming the 
role of President of our U.S. operations. Sam was previously 
the Vice President of our U.S. operations.
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Comparative Quarterly Income Statements
 
 
($thousands, unaudited) 
Three months ended December 31,  2014

% of 
Revenue 2013

% of 
Revenue

Quarter- 
Over- 

Quarter 
Change

%  
Change

Revenue 755,417 100% 552,144 100.0% 203,273 37%
Expenses
	 Materials and operating 631,889 83.6% 490,713 88.9% 141,176 29%
	 General and administrative 18,954 2.5% 25,931 4.7% (6,977) (27%)
Operating income* 104,574 13.8% 35,500 6.4% 69,074 195%
	 Finance costs 10,252 1.4% 8,592 1.6% 1,660 19%
	 Depreciation and amortization 53,843 7.1% 70,085 12.7% (16,242) (23%)
	 Foreign exchange (gain) / loss 14,453 1.9% (5,968) (1.1%) 20,421 (342%)
	 Asset impairments 12,359 1.6% - 0.0% 12,359 100%
	 Other loss 390 0.1% 432 0.1% (42) 10%
Profit before income taxes & non-controlling interest 13,277 1.8% (37,641) (6.8%) 50,918 135%
Income tax expense / (recovery) 10,293 1.4% (16,431) (3.0%) 26,724 (163%)
Non-controlling interest (1,916) (0.3%) (380) (0.1%) (1,536) (404%)
Net income / (loss) 4,900 0.6% (20,830) (3.8%) 25,730 124%

* See first page of this report.

($ thousands, except revenue per job, unaudited)     
Three months ended,

Dec. 31, 
2014

% of 
Revenue

 Dec. 31, 
2013

% of 
Revenue

Sept. 30, 
2014

% of 
Revenue

Revenue 342,872 286,869 360,896
Expenses
	 Materials and operating 264,463 77.1% 228,533 79.7% 257,851 71.4%
	 General and administrative 3,613 1.1% 5,244 1.8% 5,738 1.6%
	 Total expenses 268,076 78.2% 233,777 81.5% 263,589 73.0%
Operating income / (loss)* 74,796 21.8% 53,092 18.5% 97,307 27.0%
Number of jobs 5,397 5,154 6,331
Revenue per job 62,245 55,435 56,810

* See first page of this report.

CANADIAN OPERATIONS

Sales Mix

(unaudited)
Three months ended, Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 2013 Sept. 30, 2014
% of Total Revenue
Fracturing 67% 67% 67%

Cementing 19% 18% 19%

Nitrogen 4% 6% 6%
Industrial services 3% 4% 2%

Coiled tubing 3% 3% 3%

Acidizing 2% 1% 2%

Other 2% 1% 1%

Total 100% 100% 100%
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Operations Review  
Canadian pressure pumping activity was strong during 
most of the fourth quarter of 2014 as Canadian rig count 
was up 8% compared to the fourth quarter of 2013 and led 
to strong demand for pressure pumping services. However, 
activity declined substantially near the end of the quarter 
with the rig count falling approximately 50% over the last 
two weeks of December. Although a decline was expected, 
the extent of the slow-down exceeded expectations as we 
began to see the impact of lower oil prices on demand for 
our services. 

We continued to see an increase in fracturing intensity 
during the fourth quarter of 2014, which contributed to 
strong demand for fracturing services. Sand volumes and 
fracturing stages per well continued to increase during the 
quarter and contributed to higher revenue per job for our 
fracturing service line. Due to strong fracturing demand 
throughout the second half of 2014, an additional 25,000 
horsepower fracturing crew was deployed in Canada early 
in the fourth quarter using existing idle capacity. 

Canadian pricing levels in the fourth quarter of 2014 
increased by 9% compared to the fourth quarter of 2013 
and were relatively flat on a sequential basis.  

We continued to see market share gains for our Canadian 
completions tools business during the fourth quarter 
of 2014. Revenue increased by 8% sequentially as we 
experienced growing customer acceptance of our 
completion tools product offering in the Canadian market.

Q4 2014 versus Q4 2013

Canadian revenue for the fourth quarter of 2014 increased 
by 20% compared to the fourth quarter of 2013. Increased 
fracturing intensity and pricing improvements contributed 
to the revenue growth and led to a 12% rise in revenue per 
job. The job count increased by 5% due to higher year-over-

year activity levels in Canada. Strong customer cash flows 
throughout the first three quarters of 2014 contributed to the 
year-over-year increase in fourth quarter activity levels.  

Materials and operating expenses decreased to 77.1% of 
revenue compared to 79.7% for the same period in 2013. The 
margin improvement was largely due to increased operating 
leverage on our fixed cost structure that resulted from higher 
equipment utilization and pricing. The impact of improved 
utilization and pricing was partially offset by higher costs. The 
most significant cost increases related to sand logistics, which 
were up over the previous year but improved sequentially. 
General and administrative expenses decreased by $1.6 
million due largely to lower share-based liabilities that are 
adjusted monthly based on Trican’s share price.

Q4 2014 versus Q3 2014

Canadian revenue in the fourth quarter decreased by 5% 
compared to the third quarter of 2014. The number of 
jobs decreased by 15% due largely to a substantial drop in 
activity over the last two weeks of December. The lower job 
count was partially offset by a 10% increase in revenue per 
job due to an increase in fracturing job sizes. Fracturing job 
sizes continue to grow due to increases in sand volume and 
fracturing stages per well. 

As a percentage of revenue, materials and operating 
expenses increased to 77.1% compared to 71.4% in the 
third quarter of 2014. Decreased activity levels led to lower 
operating leverage on our cost structure and a decline in 
operating margins. Increased product and fuel costs also 
contributed to the increase in materials and operating 
costs. Diesel comprises most of our fuel consumption and, 
despite the drop in oil prices, diesel prices did not decrease 
significantly during the fourth quarter of 2014. General and 
administrative costs decreased by $2.1 million due mainly to 
lower share-based employee expenses.
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($ thousands, except revenue per job, unaudited) 
Three months ended,

Dec. 31, 
2014

% of 
Revenue

Dec. 31, 
2013

% of 
Revenue

Sept. 30, 
2014

% of 
Revenue

Revenue 340,717 173,470 314,574

Expenses

	 Materials and operating 298,951 87.7% 174,989 100.9% 286,454 91.1%

	 General and administrative 6,877 2.0% 6,776 3.9% 8,554 2.7%

	 Total expenses 305,828 89.8% 181,765 104.8% 295,008 93.8%

Operating income* 34,889 10.2% (8,295) (4.8%) 19,566 6.2%

Number of jobs 3,534 2,262 2,996

Revenue per job 97,670 68,533 101,476

* See first page of this report.

UNITED STATES OPERATIONS 

Sales Mix

(unaudited) 
Three months ended, Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 2013 Sept. 30, 2014
% of Total Revenue
Fracturing 92% 88% 93%

Cementing 4% 7% 5%

Coiled tubing 4% 5% 2%

Total 100% 100% 100%

Operations Review

The utilization of our U.S. equipment was strong for most of 
the fourth quarter of 2014. Revenue for our U.S. operations 
increased sequentially by 8% and benefitted from a full 
quarter of activity for additional crews deployed in the 
Bakken and Permian regions late in the third quarter of 2014. 
U.S. pricing remained stable during the quarter.   

Financial results for our U.S. operations improved due to 
cost control initiatives that favorably impacted operating 
margins in the fourth quarter of 2014. Notable decreases in 
sand hauling and product logistics costs were realized in 
the quarter and contributed to a 400 basis point sequential 
improvement in operating margins. Our U.S. operations 
reached our goal of exceeding 15% operating margins 
in November and then saw a seasonal slowdown in the 
second half of December. 

Revenue and operating income increased sequentially for 
our U.S. completions tools division. We continued to make 
progress on expanding our customer base for this service 
line. 

Q4 2014 versus Q4 2013

U.S. revenue in the fourth quarter of 2014 was up 96% 
compared to the fourth quarter of 2013. Revenue per job 
increased by 43% due to pricing increases, a stronger U.S. 
dollar relative to the Canadian dollar, and an increase in 
fracturing intensity that led to larger fracturing job sizes. 
The job count increased by 56% due to an increase in 
active fracturing horsepower in the Marcellus, Permian, and 
Bakken regions as well as increased utilization in all other 
U.S. regions.

As a percentage of revenue, materials and operating 
expenses decreased to 87.7% from 100.9%. Increased 
operational leverage due to higher utilization, additional 
deployed equipment, and higher pricing led to the margin 
improvement. General and administrative costs increased 
by $0.1 million as lower share-based expenses, were more 
than offset by higher insurance and employee costs.  

Q4 2014 versus Q3 2014

On a sequential basis, U.S. revenue increased by 8%. The 
job count increased by 18% due to the increase in active 
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($ thousands, except revenue per job, unaudited) 
Three months ended,

Dec. 31, 
2014

% of 
Revenue

 Dec. 31, 
2013

% of 
Revenue

Sept. 30, 
2014

% of 
Revenue

Revenue 71,828 91,805 95,155
Expenses
	 Materials and operating 62,136 86.5% 80,556 87.7% 77,380 81.3%
	 General and administrative 3,001 4.2% 4,434 4.8% 4,230 4.4%
	 Total expenses 65,137 90.7% 84,990 92.6% 81,610 85.8%
Operating income* 6,691 9.3% 6,815 7.4% 13,545 14.2%
Number of jobs 1,149 1,074 1,257
Revenue per job 57,901 82,872 74,484

* See first page of this report.

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS 

Sales Mix

(unaudited)  
Three months ended, Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 2013 Sept. 30, 2014
% of Total Revenue
Fracturing 83% 84% 86%

Coiled tubing 8% 6% 6%

Cementing 5% 5% 5%

Nitrogen 2% 2% 2%

Other 2% 3% 1%

Total  100% 100% 100%

equipment combined with higher activity and utilization 
levels for our fracturing crews. Coiled tubing utilization also 
increased sequentially and contributed to the rise in the job 
count. Revenue per job decreased by 4% due to regional 
job size variations. This was partially offset by a stronger U.S. 
dollar relative to the Canadian dollar.

Materials and operating expenses decreased to 87.7% from 
91.1% due to increased operational leverage on our fixed 
cost structure from higher revenue and progress made on 
cost control initiatives. General and administrative costs 
decreased by $1.7 million due largely to lower share-based 
employee expenses. 

Operations Review
Our international operations include the financial results for 
operations in Russia, Kazakhstan, Algeria, Australia, Saudi 
Arabia, Colombia and Norway.

Our Russian operations comprise the majority of our 
international results and activity levels in Russia were strong 
during the fourth quarter of 2014. Fourth quarter operating 
conditions in Russia are usually impacted by extreme 
cold temperatures; however, similar to 2013, our Russian 
customers remained active in order to complete 2014 work 
programs, despite the cold weather.

Low oil prices combined with economic sanctions 
against Russia have caused the Russian ruble to weaken 
substantially. During the fourth quarter of 2014, the ruble 
weakened relative the Canadian dollar by approximately 
27% sequentially and by 36% year-over-year. This decline 
had a significant impact on Canadian dollar revenue 
and operating income as all revenue generated by our 
Russian operations is denominated in rubles. The decline 
had a minimal impact on Russian operating income as 
a percentage of revenue as most of the fourth quarter 
expenses in Russia were also denominated in rubles. 
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Due to the low price of oil and a reduction our customers 
drilling and completions programs, activity levels were weak 
in Colombia during the fourth quarter of 2014. We do not 
expect activity levels to recover in the near future and, as a 
result, we temporarily suspended operations in Colombia 
in early 2015. We will continue to evaluate opportunities in 
the region but do not expect to resume operations until 
economic conditions improve. 

Financial results continued to be strong in Kazakhstan 
during the fourth quarter. Although activity levels were 
down sequentially due to seasonal factors, Kazakhstan 
operating margins remained strong. 

We completed all remaining contract commitments in 
Algeria during the fourth quarter and have shut-down 
operations in that region. 

Coiled tubing activity increased for our Saudi Arabia 
operations during the fourth quarter of 2014; however, 
activity levels in the region continued to be intermittent. 
Our goal in 2015 will be to add additional contracts that will 
ensure a steady flow of activity in Saudi Arabia, which will 
allow us to effectively expand our operations in this region.  

Our operations in Australia grew sequentially but still 
did not have a meaningful impact on fourth quarter 
international operating income.

Operating and financial results for the Norwegian 
completion tools division continued to be strong during 
the fourth quarter of 2014. We currently expect activity 
and demand to be steady for this division in 2015 based 
on current customer commitments; however, we will 
closely monitor activity in this region as it is expected to be 
impacted by low oil prices in 2015.

Q4 2014 versus Q4 2013

International revenue in the fourth quarter of 2014 
decreased by 22% compared to the fourth quarter of 2013. 
The decline of the Russian ruble relative to the Canadian 
dollar had the largest impact on fourth quarter revenue. 
The ruble declined by 36% compared to the fourth quarter 
of 2013, which contributed to the 30% drop in revenue per 
job.  Larger job sizes in Russia partially offset the impact 
of the lower ruble. The job count increased by 7% due to 
higher year-over-year activity in Russia and Saudi Arabia, 
offset partially by lower activity in Algeria. An increase in 
international completion tools activity also contributed to 
the increase in revenue.

As a percentage of revenue, materials and operating 
expenses decreased to 86.5% from 87.7% compared to 
the fourth quarter of 2013. International operating margins 
benefitted from increased activity in Russia and Saudi 
Arabia, which was partially offset by operating losses in 
Colombia. Successful 2014 cost control initiatives in Russia 
also contributed to the margin improvement. General and 
administrative costs decreased by $1.4 million due to lower share 
unit expenses combined with lower general and administrative 
costs in Russia due to the devaluation of the ruble.

Q4 2014 versus Q3 2014

International revenue decreased by 25% sequentially due 
largely to lower revenue in Russia caused by a weaker ruble 
and an expected seasonal slow-down, which was partially 
offset by increased revenue in Saudi Arabia. Materials and 
operating expenses increased to 86.5% compared to 81.3% 
in the third quarter of 2014, due largely to seasonal slow-
downs in Russia that reduced operating leverage on fixed 
costs. Higher operating losses in Colombia and Algeria also 
negatively impacted sequential operating margins. General 
and administrative costs decreased by $1.2 million due to 
lower share unit expenses combined with lower general and 
administrative costs in Russia caused by the weaker ruble.
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Q4 2014 versus Q4 2013

Corporate expenses for the fourth quarter of 2014 
decreased by $4.3 million compared to the fourth quarter of 
2013 due largely to lower share unit expenses.

Q4 2014 versus Q3 2014

Sequentially, corporate expenses decreased by $6.2 million 
due to a decline in share unit expenses combined with 
lower employee costs. Employee costs are down due to a 
5% sequential reduction in corporate personnel.

OTHER EXPENSES AND INCOME
Finance costs for the fourth quarter of 2014 increased by 
19% compared to the same period in 2013 due largely to 
a stronger U.S. dollar as a portion of our interest expense 
is incurred in U.S. dollars. An increase in average debt 
balances also contributed to the increase. Depreciation 
and amortization expense decreased by 23% compared 
to the same period last year due primarily to $11.6 million 
of prior period depreciation and amortization adjustments 
recorded in the fourth quarter of 2013 (see section on 
non-IFRS disclosure at the end of this document for more 
details). Excluding these one-time charges, depreciation and 
amortization decreased by 8% due to a lower depreciable 
asset base combined with a reduction in Canadian dollar 
depreciation on Russian ruble denominated assets. These 
factors were partially offset by an increase in Canadian dollar 
depreciation on U.S. dollar denominated assets. 

Foreign exchange losses of $14.5 million have been 
recorded in the fourth quarter of 2014, compared to gains 
of $6.0 million for the same period in 2013. The fourth 

quarter loss is largely due to the devaluation of the Russian 
ruble relative to the Canadian dollar, which decreased the 
value of ruble denominated net assets. This was offset 
partially by gains on net U.S. denominated assets due to 
the strengthening of the U.S. dollar relative to the Canadian 
dollar. Other loss of $0.4 million for the fourth quarter of 
2014 relates to net losses on asset sales offset partially by 
interest income earned on cash balances.   

Asset Impairment Write-Downs

Based on the completion of a strategic review, Trican will 
exit the microseismic business during the first quarter of 
2015. A loss of approximately $5.4 million was recorded 
during the fourth quarter of 2014 relating to the write-off 
of microseismic software. This loss was recorded in “Other 
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
loss.

Based on the results of impairment testing performed at 
December 31, 2014, asset impairment write-downs of $5.0 
million relating to goodwill and equipment assigned to our 
coiled tubing operations in Canada, and $2.0 million relating 
to cementing assets in Australia were recorded during 
the fourth quarter of 2014. These losses were recorded 
in “Asset impairments” in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive loss.

INCOME TAXES
Trican recorded an income tax expense of $10.3 million 
during the fourth quarter of 2014, versus a recovery of $16.4 
million for the same period in 2013. The increase in the tax 
expense is attributable to higher taxable earnings.

($ thousands, unaudited) 
Three months ended,

Dec. 31, 
2014

% of 
Revenue

Dec. 31, 
2013

% of 
Revenue

Sept. 30, 
2014

% of 
Revenue

Expenses
	 Materials and operating 6,339 0.8% 6,635 1.2% 7,631 1.0%

	 General and administrative 5,463 0.7% 9,477 1.7% 10,370 1.3%
	 Total expenses 11,802 1.6% 16,112 2.9% 18,001 2.3%
Operating loss* (11,802) (16,112) (18,001)

* See first page of this report. 

CORPORATE 
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Comparative YEAR-TO-DATE Income Statements

($thousands, unaudited) 
Year ended December 31,  2014

% of 
Revenue 2013

% of 
Revenue

Period 
Change

%  
Change

Revenue 2,703,858 100.0% 2,115,472 100.0% 588,386 28%
Expenses
	 Materials and operating 2,327,534 86.1% 1,826,221 86.3% 501,313 27%
	 General and administrative 115,646 4.3% 109,701 5.2% 5,945 5%
Operating income* 260,678 9.6% 179,550 8.5% 81,128 45%
	 Finance costs 39,698 1.5% 34,497 1.6% 5,201 15%
	 Depreciation and amortization 209,056 7.7% 222,403 10.5% (13,347) (6%)
	 Asset impairment 12,359 0.5% 4,123 0.2% 8,236 200%
	 Foreign exchange (gain) / loss 15,038 0.6% (4,859) (0.2%) 19,897 (409%)
	 Other income (3,921) 0.1% (1,612) (0.1%) (2,309) 143%
Loss before income taxes (11,552) (0.4%) (75,002) (3.5%) 63,450 85%
Income tax recovery (2,692) (0.1%) (28,303) (1.3%) 25,611 (90%)
Non-controlling interest (3,815) (0.1%) (845) 0.0% (2,970) (351%)
Net loss (5,045) (0.2%) (45,854) (2.2%) 40,809 89%

* See first page of this report.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
Other comprehensive income for the three months ended 
December 31, 2014, includes a loss of $0.2 million on cash 
flow hedges compared to a $0.6 million loss in the same 
quarter of 2013. Gains and losses on cash flow hedges are 
recorded based on the difference between the current U.S. 

dollar/Canadian dollar spot rate compared to the forward 
rates on the cash flow hedges. Foreign currency translation 
differences resulted in a loss of $20.1 million largely as a 
result of the devaluation of the Russian ruble relative to the 
Canadian dollar. This was offset partially by gains recognized 
on U.S. net assets due to the strengthening of the U.S. dollar 
relative to the Canadian dollar.

2014 HIGHLIGHTS
Consolidated revenue for 2014 increased by 28% to $2.7 
billion compared to 2013, and adjusted profit was $30.0 
million compared to an adjusted loss of $36.3 in 2013. 
Adjusted diluted profit per share increased to $0.20 
compared to a loss of $0.27 and funds provided by 
operations increased to $229.6 million from $130.0 million.

Pressure pumping demand was strong in Canada 
throughout most of 2014. Demand benefitted from 
an increase in fracturing intensity per well and a rise in 
customer cash flows that led to additional capital spending 
by our Canadian customer base. Industry leading service 
quality and technology, combined with improved macro-
economic conditions led to a 20% year-over-year increase in 
Canadian revenue. However, increased fracturing intensity 
per well also led to logistical challenges in the first half of 
the year due to the substantial rise in sand volumes per 

well, which negatively impacted operating margins in 
the first and second quarters of 2014. Improvements in 
sand logistics management occurred in the second half 
of 2014 as we increased our storage, transportation and 
logistics capabilities. Canadian pricing levels were weak 
at the start of 2014 but increased throughout the year 
due to the rise in pressure pumping demand. Second half 
improvements in pricing and sand logistics management 
led to improvements in Canadian operating margins in the 
second half of 2014. 

U.S. revenue increased by 48% and operating income 
increased by 186% in 2014 compared to 2013. Sequential 
improvements in U.S. operating and financial results were 
achieved throughout 2014 as management changes made 
in late 2013 and early 2014 positively impacted our U.S. 
operations during the year. Our U.S. results also benefitted 
from higher fracturing demand due to increases in rig 
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($ thousands, except revenue per job, unaudited)    
Year ended December 31,

 
2014

% of  
Revenue 2013

% of    
Revenue

Period-Over-
Period Change

Revenue 1,229,046 1,021,426 20%
Expenses
	 Materials and operating 977,357 79.5% 794,459 77.8% 23%
	 General and administrative 25,107 2.0% 26,167 2.6% (4%)
	 Total expenses 1,002,464 81.6% 820,626 80.3% 22%
Operating income* 226,582 18.4% 200,800 19.7% 13%
Number of jobs 21,752 21,287 2%
Revenue per job 56,144 47,553 18%

* See first page of this report.

CANADIAN OPERATIONS

count and fracturing intensity per well. Strong demand and 
improved operational execution provided opportunities to 
deploy additional U.S. equipment during the year. Existing 
idle equipment was deployed in the Bakken, Permian and 
Marcellus regions during 2014. Strong utilization for existing 
and newly deployed equipment combined with pricing 
improvements led to a 280 basis point increase in 2014 
operating margins compared to 2013. These improvements 
were partially offset by substantial cost increases for sand 
hauling and logistics that negatively weighed on operating 
margins throughout 2014. 

International revenue increased by 4% on a year-over-year 
basis due largely to the growth of our completions tools 
business in Norway and an increase in pressure pumping 
activity in Russia. The Russian pressure pumping market 
continued to benefit from an increase in horizontal drilling 

and completions activity on conventional sandstones, 
which contributed to a rise in pressure pumping demand 
in 2014. The growth in Russia was somewhat offset by the 
devaluation of the Russian ruble that lowered the Canadian 
dollar revenue and operating income generated by our 
Russian operations during 2014. Revenue for our Norwegian 
operations increased by over 150% on a year-over-year basis 
due to strong customer acceptance of our completion tools 
in the region. We continued to see steady growth for our 
Australian and Saudi Arabia operations in 2014. Due to low 
equipment utilization levels and poor financial results, our 
Algeria operations were shut-down in late 2014. In addition, 
due to declining oil prices and weak near-term outlook in 
the region, our Colombian operations were suspended in 
early 2015.

Canadian revenue in 2014 was up 20% compared to 2013. 
The 18% increase in revenue per job was largely due to 
increased fracturing intensity per well. Fracturing stages and 
sand volumes have increased substantially in 2014 and have 
led to larger fracturing job sizes and increased fracturing 
demand.  Average year-over-year pricing was up slightly in 
2014 but did not contribute significantly to the increase in 
revenue per job. Canadian oilfield activity increased in 2014 
with the rig count up 8% compared to 2013. The increased 
activity contributed to the 2% rise in the Canadian job 
count. Due to the increase in fracturing intensity and larger 
job sizes, crew sizes have grown and crews are on location 

for longer periods of time; therefore, the job count is not 
increasing to the same extent as demand and utilization. 

As a percentage of revenue, materials and operating 
expenses increased to 79.5% from 77.8% compared to the 
same period in 2013. Increased costs were partially offset 
by improved operating leverage on our cost structure due 
to the increase in activity. Higher sand logistics, product 
and diesel costs all contributed to the higher cost structure. 
General and administrative expenses decreased by $1.1 
million due largely to lower share-based costs.
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($ thousands, except revenue per job, unaudited)    
Year ended December 31, 2014

% of  
Revenue 2013

% of    
Revenue

Period-Over-
Period Change

Revenue 1,133,895 764,962 48%
Expenses
	 Materials and operating 1,037,152 91.5% 716,029 93.6% 45%
	 General and administrative 31,370 2.8% 26,046 3.4% 20%
	 Total expenses 1,068,522 94.2% 742,075 97.0% 44%
Operating income* 65,373 5.8% 22,887 3.0% 186%
Number of jobs 12,750 8,789 45%
Revenue per job 90,533 83,220 9%

* See first page of this report.

united states OPERATIONS

($ thousands, except revenue per job, unaudited)    
Year ended December 31, 2014

% of  
Revenue 2013

% of    
Revenue

Period-Over-
Period Change

Revenue 340,917 329,084 4%
Expenses
	 Materials and operating 286,881 84.2% 291,186 88.5% (1%)
	 General and administrative 17,956 5.3% 17,095 5.2% 5%
	 Total expenses 304,837 89.4% 308,281 93.7% (1%)
Operating income* 36,080 10.6% 20,803 6.3% 73%
Number of jobs 4,597 4,182 10%
Revenue per job 67,924 75,861 (10%)

* See first page of this report.

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

U.S. revenue for 2014, increased by 48% compared to 2013. 
The job count increased by 45% due to substantially higher 
fracturing activity in the Marcellus, Permian and Bakken 
regions. The addition of a fourth fracturing crew during 
the second quarter, combined with strong utilization, 
contributed to the increase in the Marcellus region. A 
substantial increase in utilization for our fracturing crews 
operating in the Permian and Bakken, as well as increased 
equipment during the second half of 2014, led to job count 
growth in these regions. Revenue in 2014 also benefitted 
from a stronger U.S. dollar and larger fracturing job sizes 
that both contributed to the 9% increase in revenue per job.

As a percentage of revenue, materials and operating 
expenses decreased to 91.5% from 93.6%. Increased 
operating leverage on our fixed cost structure caused by 
higher revenue and pricing contributed to the margin 
improvement. An increase in year-over-year sand logistics 
costs partially offset the improved operational leverage. 
General and administrative costs increased by $5.3 million 
due largely to increased people, office and insurance 
expenses, offset partially by lower share unit expenses.
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International revenue increased by 4% for the year ending 
December 31, 2014, compared to 2013. Higher activity 
in Russia and Norway contributed to the majority of the 
increase, and was offset partially by a decline in the value 
of the Russian ruble relative to the Canadian dollar. Russian 
activity benefitted from a rise in horizontal drilling and 
completions activity on conventional sandstones, which led 
to an increase in pressure pumping demand in the region. 
Increased year-over-year activity in Colombia, Saudi Arabia 
and Australia also contributed to the rise in international 
revenue. 

Materials and operating expenses decreased to 84.2% of 
revenue compared to 88.5% of revenue in 2013. An increase 
in Russian revenue and successful cost control initiatives in 
Russian during 2014 led to a majority of the International 
margin increase. Strong financial results for the completion 
tools business in Norway also contributed to the margin 
improvement. Operating losses in Algeria and Colombia 
offset a portion of the Russian and Norwegian gains. 
General and administrative costs increased by $0.9 million 
as a decrease in share unit costs was more than offset by 
increased administrative costs in growing regions such as 
Norway, Saudi Arabia and Australia.

($ thousands, except revenue per job, unaudited)    
Year ended December 31, 2014

% of  
Revenue 2013

% of    
Revenue

Period-Over-
Period Change

Expenses
	 Materials and operating 26,144 1.0% 24,547 1.2% 7%
	 General and administrative 41,213 1.5% 40,393 1.9% 2%
	 Total expenses 67,357 2.5% 64,940 3.1% 4%
Operating loss* (67,357) (64,940) 4%

* See first page of this report.

CORPORATE

Corporate costs increased by $2.4 million in 2014 relative 
to 2013. A rise in employee costs led to a majority of 
the increase and was partially offset by lower share unit 
expenses

OTHER EXPENSES AND INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2014, finance costs 
increased by 15% compared to the same period in 2013 due 
to increased debt balances and a stronger U.S. dollar, which 
increased finance costs on U.S. dollar denominated debt. 
Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by 6% 
compared to the same period last year due to lower asset 
balances. 

Foreign exchange losses of $15.0 million have been 
recorded for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared 
to gains of $4.9 million for the same period in 2013. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses incurred by Trican are largely 
due to the net impact of fluctuations in the U.S. dollar and 
Russian ruble relative to the Canadian dollar. Most of the 
loss relates to the devaluation of the Russian ruble relative 
to the Canadian dollar, which decreased the value of ruble 

denominated net assets.  Other income for the year was 
$3.9 million compared to $1.6 million for the same period of 
2013. Other income is largely comprised of gains on asset 
sales and interest income on cash balances. 

INCOME TAXES
Trican recorded an income tax recovery of $2.7 million for 
the year ended December 31, 2014, versus a recovery of 
$28.3 million for the same period of 2013. The lower tax 
recovery is primarily attributable to a decrease in taxable 
losses.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 
31, 2014, includes a loss of $2.4 million on cash flow hedges 
that relate to cross currency swaps on U.S. denominated 
debt. Foreign currency translation differences resulted in 
a loss of $23.1 million largely as a result of the devaluation 
of the Russian ruble relative to the Canadian dollar. This was 
offset partially by gains recognized on U.S. net assets due to 
the strengthening of the U.S. dollar relative to the Canadian 
dollar.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Operating Activities

Funds provided by operations increased to $90.1 million 
for the fourth quarter of 2014 compared to $30.0 million for 
the same period in 2013. The increase was due largely to 
improved earnings.

At December 31, 2014, Trican had working capital of $601.2 
million compared to $413.2 million at the end of 2013. The 
increase is largely due to North American revenue growth, 
which has led to a significant increase in trade accounts 
receivable, offset partially by an increase in trade payable. 

Investing Activities

Capital expenditures for the fourth quarter of 2014 totaled 
$21.1 million, compared with $20.9 million for the same 
period in 2013. Capital expenditures for the year ended 
December 31, 2014, were $90.0 million compared to $107.8 
million in 2013. Capital expenditures have largely consisted of 
maintenance capital programs for the past several quarters.

Given the reduced North American activity expectations 
for 2015, capital spending will be kept to a minimum 
throughout the year. The primary focus will be on 
maintaining equipment quality and performance of our 
existing asset base. Based on existing capital budget 
commitments, we expect capital spending to be between 
$50 million and $60 million during 2015. Trican regularly 
reviews its capital equipment requirements and will 
continue to follow its policy of adjusting the capital 
budget on a quarterly basis to reflect changing operating 
conditions and capital equipment needs. 

Financing Activities

As at February 25, 2015 Trican had 148,918,046 common 
shares and 10,236,503 employee stock options outstanding.

On September 3, 2014, the Company closed a private 
placement of C$20 million senior unsecured notes that 
mature on September 3, 2024 and bear interest at a fixed 
rate of 5.75% payable semi-annually on March 15 and 
September 15.

On July 17, 2014, Trican exercised the Accordion feature of 
its Revolving Credit Facility and increased it from $500.0 

million to $575.0 million. On October 31, 2014, the facility 
was extended by an additional year, and now matures on 
October 18, 2018. All other terms and conditions of the 
facility remain unchanged. 

On June 22, 2014, Trican repaid U.S. $75 million, retiring its 
2007 Series B Senior Notes, bearing interest at a fixed rate of 
6.10% payable semi-annually on June 22 and December 22.

During the first quarter of 2014, Trican received approval 
from the Toronto Stock Exchange to purchase its own 
common shares, for cancellation, in accordance with a 
Normal Course Issuer Bid (“NCIB”) that expires on March 12, 
2015. During the year ended December 31, 2014, there were 
549,225 common shares purchased through the NCIB.

Trican currently pays a semi-annual dividend of $0.15 per 
share. During 2014, $44.8 million in dividend payments were 
made.

OUTLOOK
North America

Sharp oil price declines and weak natural gas prices are 
expected to result in a significant decrease in North American 
drilling and completions activity in 2015 relative to 2014. We 
have already seen significant declines in pressure pumping 
demand in our Canadian, Permian, Bakken and Eagle Ford 
regions and have started to adjust our operations accordingly. 

In Canada, we expect the slow-down over spring break-up 
to begin early and end late given the lack of urgency by 
our customers to drill and complete wells in the current 
commodity price environment. We also expect to park 20% 
to 25% of our Canadian pressure pumping equipment by 
the end of the first quarter of 2015 and reduce the fixed and 
variable costs associated with this equipment. 

In the U.S., we have parked one fracturing crew in each of our 
Eagle Ford, Bakken, Permian and Longview regions during 
the first quarter of 2015. We have also closed our operating 
base in Longview, Texas, where one fracturing crew and 
two cement crews had previously operated. Although these 
crews were working in the Haynesville region, which is 
primarily dry gas, the low price of oil has impacted activity 
in surrounding areas throughout East Texas and led to an 
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over-supply of fracturing equipment and reduced pricing in 
the region. Despite this significant decline in our active U.S. 
fleet, we remained committed to the U.S. pressure pumping 
market long-term. We are pleased with the recent operational 
and financial improvements made to our U.S. operations and 
expect to emerge from the current downturn with a stronger 
U.S. business. 

Collectively, these measures are expected to significantly 
impact fixed costs through reductions in people and 
infrastructure. Although these reductions are unfortunate, 
we believe they are a necessary response to the current and 
expected drop in Canadian and U.S. activity. We will continue 
to monitor the activity levels of our customers and make 
additional changes as required.

Substantial cost cutting measures in Canada and the U.S. 
were initiated late in the fourth quarter of 2014 and we 
expect to see the early results of these measures in February 
of 2015. The most significant cost cutting initiatives relate to 
product, product transportation, and people costs. We are 
currently in negotiations with all Canadian and U.S. suppliers 
to reduce product and product transportation costs to the 
greatest extent possible. We are pleased with the progress 
made to date, but will continue to focus on this initiative as 
it will have the most significant impact on our cost structure.  
Effective February 1, 2015, a 10% average salary reduction 
was implemented across North America for our Canadian, 
U.S. and Corporate employees, which included a 15% to 
18% reduction for senior executives. The salary reduction is 
expected to result in annual cost savings of approximately $15 
million for our Canadian operations, $10 million for our U.S. 
operations, and $3 million for the Corporate division. We have 
also reduced our North American workforce by approximately 
600 people to date. Cost-cutting measures targeting all other 
operational and administrative costs have also been initiated. 
Our ability to execute cost cutting measures effectively and 
efficiently will be critical in maintaining an acceptable level of 
profitability throughout this downturn and we will continue 
to right size our North American business for the level of 
activity that occurs.

Average Canadian pricing levels are expected to decline by 
approximately 10% during the first quarter of 2015 compared 
to recent peak pricing levels from the second half of 2014. 
For the U.S. pressure pumping market overall, we expect 

pricing to decline by approximately 15% to 20% during 2015. 
However, U.S. pricing declines are expected to vary based 
on the region, customer and existing contract. The most 
significant declines in the U.S. are anticipated in the oil plays 
with only moderate decreases in the dry gas plays. 

We expect our pricing in Canada and the U.S. to be under 
pressure throughout 2015. The extent of the pricing declines 
will depend on activity levels within each region and, more 
importantly, our ability to reduce costs. North American 
pricing levels from the end of 2014 were still approximately 
20% below the previous peak. As a result, our ability to 
significantly reduce pricing will be limited without substantial 
cost reductions.  

International

2015 contracts and work scope have been finalized for our 
Russian operations. We expect activity to be up slightly 
compared to 2014 due to the commitment of our Russian 
customers to maintain production levels, despite the drop 
in oil prices. However, the value of the Russian ruble relative 
to the Canadian dollar will have a significant impact on 
Russian financial results in 2015. Revenue and operating 
income for our Russian operations is expected to be 40% to 
50% lower in 2015 relative to 2014 given the current ruble to 
Canadian dollar spot rate. Although most of our operating 
costs are incurred in rubles, many of our Russian suppliers 
incur costs in other currencies; as a result, we expect some 
cost inflation as the year progresses.  A continued focus on 
cost control measures in Russia is expected to partially offset 
the impact of inflation during 2015. 

We will continue to focus on growing our presence in 
Saudi Arabia and Australia during 2015 and expect to see 
continued revenue growth in these regions. Activity levels 
in Australia will be slow in the first half of 2015 but are 
expected to increase later in the year with the development 
of LNG export facilities. We will pursue opportunities to 
increase revenue and utilization in Saudi Arabia through 
additional contracts in 2015. We also expect 2015 activity 
levels to be stable for our completions tools division in 
Norway. However, activity levels in both Norway and Saudi 
Arabia could be negatively impacted by low oil prices 
during 2015. 
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Consolidated

Given the expected declines in North American activity, 
managing the balance sheet and cash flow will be a key 
focus for Trican in 2015. Cash flow in 2015 will be significantly 
influenced by changes to working capital throughout the 
year. Slowing market conditions are expected to result in 
substantial working capital reductions during 2015, which 
should provide Trican with meaningful cash inflows. Capital 
expenditures will also have a significant impact on cash 
flow during 2015. Almost all current capital initiatives relate 
to maintenance projects and given expected activity levels, 
we anticipate capital spending to be approximately $50 to 
$60 million in 2015. A conservative capital spending program 
combined with reductions in working capital is expected to 
provide opportunities to pay down a significant amount of 
debt in 2015, despite the weak financial outlook. 

2015 is expected to be a challenging year for Trican. However, 
our management team has experienced several business 
cycles and understands what is needed to effectively manage 
the business through a downturn. With our experienced 
management team and the commitment of our people, we 
remain confident in our ability to manage through this most 
recent downturn and emerge as a stronger organization.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND 
AMENDMENTS

A number of new standards and amendments to standards 
and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 
December 31, 2014, and have not been applied in preparing 
Trican’s consolidated financial statements.  

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, 
were issued in December, 2014 as part of IASB major 
initiative to improve presentation and disclosure in financial 
reports (the “Disclosure Initiative”).  The amendments 
provide additional guidance on materiality and aggregation, 
presentation of subtotals, the structure of the financial 
statements and the disclosure of the accounting policies. 
The amendments may be applied immediately, and become 
mandatory for annual periods beginning or after January 1, 
2016. The amendments are not expected to have a material 
impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In July, 2014 the IASB issued the complete IFRS 9, Financial 
Instruments, (IFRS 9 (2014)). Under the new Standard, 
financial assets are classified and measured based on 
the business model in which they are held and the 
characteristics of their contractual cash flows. It also amends 
the impairment model by introducing a new ‘expected 
credit loss’ model for calculating impairment. Further, IFRS 
9 (2014) includes a new general hedge standard that is 
better aligned with companies’ risk management, expands 
the scope of the hedging strategies, and introduces 
more judgement to assess the effectiveness of the hedge 
relationship. The amendments to IFRS 9 (2014) are effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, 
and are available for early adoption. Management has 
not yet evaluated the impact of this new Standard on the 
Company’s financial statements and disclosures.

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, was issued 
on May 28, 2014. The Standard contains a single model that 
applies to contracts with customers and two approaches to 
recognising revenue: 1) at a point in time or 2) over time. The 
model features a contract-based five-step transaction analysis 
to determine whether, how much, and when revenue is 
recognized. New estimates and judgmental thresholds 
have been introduced, which may affect the amount and/
or timing of revenue recognized. The Standard replaces 
IAS 11, Construction Contracts, IAS 18, Revenue, IFRIC 13, 
Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15, Agreements for 
the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18, Transfer of Assets 
from Customers, and SIC 31, Revenue – Barter Transactions 
Involving Advertising Services. The new standard is effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017. 
Early adoption is also permitted. Management has not yet 
evaluated the impact of this new Standard on the Company’s 
financial statements and disclosures. 

Management does not expect the amendments to have a 
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES   
AND JUDGEMENTS

The following judgments and estimates are those deemed by 
management to be material to the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements.
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Judgments

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization methods are based on 
management’s judgment of the most appropriate method 
to reflect the pattern of an asset’s future economic benefit 
expected to be consumed by the Company. Among other 
factors, these judgments are based on industry standards and 
company-specific history and experience.

Impairment

Assessment of impairment is based on management’s 
judgment of whether there are internal and external factors 
that would indicate that an asset or cash generating unit is 
impaired. The determination of a cash generating unit is also 
based on management’s judgment and is an assessment 
of the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows 
independently of other assets. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

An allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded when there 
is objective evidence that the collection of the full amount 
is no longer probable under the terms of the original 
invoice. Impaired receivables are derecognized when they 
are assessed as uncollectible. Amounts estimated represent 
management’s best estimate of probability of collection of 
amounts from customers.

Impairment of Inventories 

The Company regularly reviews the nature and quantities of 
inventory on hand and evaluates the net realizable value of 
items based on historical usage patterns, known changes to 
equipment or processes and customer demand for specific 
products. Significant or unanticipated changes in business 
conditions could impact the magnitude and timing of 
impairment recognized.

Estimates

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization are calculated to write off the 
cost, less estimated residual value, of assets on a systematic 
and rational basis over their expected useful lives. Estimates 
of residual value and useful lives are based on data and 
information from various sources including industry practice 
and historic experience. Expected useful lives and residual 
values are reviewed annually for any change to estimates and 
assumptions.

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities contain estimates about 
the nature and timing of future permanent and temporary 
differences as well as the future tax rates that will apply to 
those differences. Changes in tax laws and rates as well as 
changes to the expected timing of reversals may have a 
significant impact on the amounts recorded for deferred tax 
assets and liabilities. Management closely monitors current 
and potential changes to tax law and bases its estimates on 
the best available information at each reporting date.

Fair Value of Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

The Company uses an option pricing model to determine 
the fair value of certain share-based payments. Inputs to the 
model are subject to various estimates relating to volatility, 
interest rates, dividend yields and expected life of the units 
issued. Fair value inputs are subject to market factors as well 
as internal estimates. The Company considers historic trends 
together with any new information to determine the best 
estimate of fair value at the date of grant.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

In determining the recoverable amount of assets subject to 
impairment testing, the Company measures the recoverable 
amount of non-financial assets as the higher of a fair value 
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Future net revenues, 
fair market value of the non-financial assets, and future cash 
flows are evaluated and calculated using various factors 
and assumptions.  The factors and assumptions used in the 
estimates are assessed for reasonableness based on the 
information available at the time the estimates are prepared. 
As circumstances change and new information becomes 
available, the estimates could change.  

There have been no material revisions to the nature of 
judgments or changes in estimates of amounts reported 
in the Company’s 2014 consolidated annual financial 
statements.

BUSINESS RISKS

Our business is subject to a number of risks and 
uncertainties, some of which are summarized below. We 
encourage you to review and carefully consider the risks 
described below, as well as those described elsewhere 
in this report and in other publicly disclosed reports and 
materials. If any such risks were to materialize, our business, 
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financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or 
prospects could be materially adversely affected. In turn, 
this could have a material adverse effect on the trading 
price of our securities. Additional risks and uncertainties not 
currently known to us, or that we currently deem immaterial, 
may also adversely affect our business and operations.  

Demand for Trican’s Services is Dependent      
Upon the Level of Expenditures in the Oil and    
Gas Industry, Which can be Volatile

The demand, pricing and terms for Trican’s services 
depend significantly upon the level of expenditures made 
by oil and gas companies on exploration, development 
and production activities. Expenditures by oil and gas 
companies are typically directly related to the demand for, 
and price of, oil and gas. Generally, when commodity prices 
and demand are, or are predicted to be, relatively high, 
demand for Trican’s services is high. The converse is also 
true.  

The prices for oil and natural gas are subject to a variety of 
factors including: the demand for energy; the ability of the 
Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries (“OPEC”) 
to set and maintain production levels for oil; oil and gas 
production by non-OPEC countries; political and economic 
uncertainty and socio-political unrest; cost of exporting, 
producing and delivering oil and gas; technological 
advances affecting energy consumption; and weather 
conditions. Any prolonged or substantial reduction in 
oil and natural gas prices would likely decrease the level 
of activity and expenditures in oil and gas exploration, 
development and production activities and, in turn, 
decrease the demand for Trican’s services.  

In addition to current and future oil and gas prices, the 
level of expenditures made by oil and gas companies are 
influenced by numerous factors over which the Company 
has no control, including but not limited to: weak general 
economic conditions; the cost of exploring for, producing 
and delivering oil and gas; the expected rates of current 
production; the discovery rates of new oil and gas reserves; 
cost and availability of drilling equipment; availability of 
pipeline and other oil and gas transportation capacity; 
North American natural gas storage levels; political, 
regulatory and economic conditions; taxation and royalty 
changes; government regulation; environmental regulation; 
ability of oil and gas companies to obtain credit, equity 

capital or debt financing; and movement of the Canadian 
dollar and Russian ruble relative to the U.S. dollar.  A material 
decline in expenditures by oil and gas companies, caused 
by a decrease in oil and gas prices or otherwise, could have 
a material adverse effect on Trican’s business, financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows. We may 
also be disadvantaged competitively and financially by 
a significant movement of exploration and production 
operations to areas of the world in which we are not 
currently active.  

Additionally, during times of weak industry conditions, the 
risk of payment delays and failure to pay increases due to a 
reduction in customers’ cash flow and challenges relating to 
their ability to access debt and equity markets among other 
factors.

Trican’s Canadian Operations are Susceptible to          
Weather Volatility  

The well service industry is characterized by considerable 
seasonality in Canada, and to a lesser extent in Russia, the 
U.S., and Australia. During the second quarter when the frost 
leaves the ground, many secondary roads are temporarily 
rendered incapable of supporting the weight of heavy 
equipment resulting in severe restrictions in the level of well 
servicing activity. The duration of this period, commonly 
referred to as the “spring break-up”, has a direct impact on 
the level of our activities, particularly in Canada. During 
other periods of the year, rainfall can also render some of 
the secondary and oilfield service roads impassable for the 
Company’s equipment. Additionally, if an unseasonably 
warm winter prevents sufficient freezing, Trican may not be 
able to access well sites.  

These factors can all reduce activity levels below normal 
or anticipated levels. Activity levels in Russia, the U.S. and 
Australia are typically not impacted to the same extent by 
seasonality.

The Oilfield Services Industry is Highly 
Competitive  

We compete with multi-national, national and regional 
competitors in each of our current service lines in each of 
our geographic regions. Certain of our competitors may 
have financial, technical, manufacturing and marketing 
advantages in certain regions and may be in a stronger 
competitive position than Trican as a result.  
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Competitive actions taken by our competitors such as price 
changes, new product and technology introductions and 
improvements in availability and delivery could affect our 
market share or competitive position. To be competitive, we 
must demonstrate value for our customers by developing 
new technologies and providing reliable products and 
services. The intense competition within our industry 
could lead to a reduction in revenue or prevent us from 
successfully pursuing additional business opportunities.

In addition, certain foreign jurisdictions and government-
owned petroleum companies have adopted policies 
or regulations, which may give local nationals in these 
countries a competitive advantage and which may impede 
our ability to expand into or to sustain a market share in 
such countries.  

Trican Would be Adversely Affected Should    
Access to Credit Facilities or Additional Financing 
be Unavailable to Trican or its Customers 

Trican’s growth strategy is subject to the availability of 
additional financing for future costs of operations or 
expansion that may not be available, or may not be 
available on acceptable terms. Trican’s activities may also 
be financed partially or wholly with debt, which may 
increase its debt levels above industry standards. The level 
of Trican’s indebtedness from time to time could impair its 
ability to obtain additional financing on a timely basis to 
take advantage of business opportunities that may arise. If 
the Company’s cash flow from operations is not sufficient 
to fund its capital expenditure requirements, there can be 
no assurance that additional debt or equity financing will 
be available to meet these requirements or, if available, on 
acceptable terms. In addition, if the Company’s financial 
performance results in a breach of any existing or future 
financial covenants, access to financing could be restricted 
and/or all or a portion of the Company’s debt could 
become due on demand.

Furthermore, many of our customers access the credit 
markets to finance their oil and natural gas drilling activity. 
If the availability of credit to our customers is reduced, they 
may reduce their drilling and production expenditures, 
thereby decreasing demand for our products and services. 
Any such reduction in spending by our customers could 
adversely impact our operating results and financial 
condition.  

The Loss of Key Customers Could Cause Trican’s 
Revenue to Decline Substantially

Trican has a number of key customers that, in aggregate, 
generate a significant portion of Trican’s revenue. There 
can be no assurance that Trican’s relationship with these 
customers will continue, and a significant reduction or 
total loss of the business from these customers, if not 
offset by sales to new or existing customers, would have a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Failure to Receive Timely Delivery of New 
Equipment and Parts from Suppliers Could 
Adversely Affect Trican’s Growth Plans  

The Company’s ability to expand its operations and provide 
reliable service is dependent upon timely delivery of new 
equipment and replacement parts from fabricators and 
suppliers. During past periods of high industry activity, 
a shortage of skilled labour to build equipment coupled 
with high demand has placed a strain on some fabricators. 
If a similar strain occurs in the future, it could potentially 
increase the order time on new equipment and increase 
uncertainty surrounding final delivery dates. Significant 
delays in the arrival of new equipment from expected 
dates may constrain future growth and may have a 
material adverse effect on the financial performance of the 
Company. 

Trican is Subject to Various Risks from its      
Foreign Operations  

Some of Trican’s current operations and related assets are 
located in Russia, Kazakhstan, Algeria, Australia, Norway, 
Saudi Arabia and Colombia. Further, Trican’s growth plans 
may contemplate establishing operations in additional 
foreign countries where the political and economic 
systems may be less stable than those in North America. 
Operations in these countries may be subject to a variety 
of risks including, but not limited to: social unrest or civil 
war, currency fluctuations, devaluations and exchange 
controls; inflation; uncertain political and economic 
conditions resulting in unfavourable government actions 
such as unfavourable legislation or regulation, trade 
restrictions, nationalization, expropriation, unfavourable tax 
enforcement or adverse tax policies; the denial of contract 
rights; trade restrictions or embargoes imposed by other 
countries; restrictions on the repatriation of income or 
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capital; and acts of terrorism, extortion, or armed conflict. If 
any of the risks described above materialize, it could reduce 
Trican’s earnings and cash available for operations.  

Further, government-owned oil companies located in 
some countries have adopted policies or are subject to 
governmental policies giving preference to the purchase 
of goods and services from companies that are majority-
owned by local nationals. As a result, we may rely on 
joint ventures, license arrangements and other business 
combinations with local nationals in these countries. 
Activities in these countries may require protracted 
negotiation with host governments, national oil companies 
and third parties.

Our operations outside of Canada could also expose us 
to trade and economic sanctions or other restrictions 
imposed by the Canadian or other governments or 
organizations. Federal agencies and authorities may seek to 
impose a broad range of criminal or civil penalties against 
corporations or individuals for violations of securities laws, 
foreign corrupt practices laws or other federal statutes. If any 
of the above described risks materialize, it could materially 
impact Trican’s operating results and financial condition.  

Further, Trican is subject to various laws and regulations in 
the various jurisdictions in which it operates that govern 
the operation and taxation of its business. The imposition, 
application and interpretation of such laws and regulations 
can prove to be uncertain.  

An Oversupply of Oilfield Service Equipment 
Could Lead to a Decline in the Demand for    
Trican’s Services  

Because of the long-life nature of oilfield service equipment 
and the lag between when a decision to build additional 
equipment is made and when the equipment is placed into 
service, the inventory of oilfield service equipment in the 
industry does not always correlate with the level of demand. 
Periods of high demand often result in increased capital 
expenditures on equipment and those capital expenditures 
may add capacity that exceeds actual demand. This excess 
capacity could cause Trican’s competitors to lower their 
prices and could lead to a decrease in prices in the oilfield 
services industry generally. Consequentially, Trican could fail 
to secure enough work in which to employ its equipment. 
This could have a material adverse effect on Trican’s 
operating results and cash flows.

Fluctuations in Foreign Currency Exchange     
Rates Could Adversely Affect the Company  

Trican’s consolidated financial statements are presented 
in Canadian dollars. The reported results of our foreign 
subsidiary operations are affected by the movement in 
exchange rates primarily between the Canadian and United 
States dollar and Russian ruble. Trican’s Canadian Operations 
include exchange rate exposure as purchases of some 
equipment and materials are from United States suppliers. 

Trican entered into cross-currency swap agreements to 
hedge a portion of our U.S. dollar denominated outstanding 
private placement notes. Other than the swap agreements 
and natural hedges that arise from day-to-day operations, 
the Company does not maintain an active hedge program 
for foreign exchange exposure.

Business Acquisitions Entail Numerous Risks 
and May Disrupt Trican’s Business or Distract 
Management Attention 

As part of Trican’s business strategy, it will continue 
to consider and evaluate acquisitions of, or significant 
investments in, complementary businesses and assets. Any 
acquisition that Trican completes could have unforeseen 
and potentially material adverse effects on the Company’s 
financial position and operating results.

Acquisitions Involve Numerous Risks, Including:

�� unanticipated costs and liabilities;

�� difficulty of integrating the operations and assets of the 
acquired business;

�� the ability to properly access and maintain an effective 
internal control environment over an acquired 
company;

�� potential loss of key employees and customers of the 
acquired company; and

�� an increase in expenses and working capital 
requirements.

Trican may incur substantial indebtedness to finance 
acquisitions and also may issue equity securities in 
connection with any such acquisitions. Trican will be 
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required to meet certain financial covenants in order 
to borrow money under its credit agreements to fund 
acquisitions. Debt service requirements could represent a 
significant burden on the Company’s results of operations 
and financial condition and the issuance of additional equity 
could be dilutive to shareholders. Acquisitions could also 
divert the attention of management and other employees 
from Trican’s day-to-day operations and the development 
of new business opportunities. In addition, Trican may 
not be able to continue to identify attractive acquisition 
opportunities or successfully acquire identified targets. 

Failure to Adequately Protect its Intellectual 
Property Could Adversely Impact Trican’s Business  

Trican’s success depends in part on our proprietary 
technology. We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, 
trademark and trade secret laws, confidentiality provisions 
and licensing arrangements to establish and protect our 
proprietary rights. Trican’s business may be adversely 
affected if it fails to obtain patents, its patents are 
unenforceable, the claims allowed under its patents are not 
sufficient to protect its technology or its trade secrets are 
not adequately protected. Trican’s competitors may be able 
to develop similar technology independently that is similar 
or superior to our technology, or may duplicate or reverse 
engineer our technology or design around the patents 
owned or licensed by Trican.  

Furthermore, if any of our competitors obtain patents over 
valuable intellectual property, Trican may be unable to offer 
certain services in certain jurisdictions, may be forced to 
use less effective or costlier alternative technology, or be 
required to enter into costly licensing agreements.

Trican’s Business is Affected by             
Governmental Regulations and Policies  

Trican’s operations, and those of its customers, are subject 
to a variety of federal, provincial, state and local laws, 
regulations and guidelines, including laws and regulations 
related to health and safety, the conduct of operations, the 
manufacture, management, transportation and disposal 
of certain materials used in its operations. Trican believes 
it is in compliance with such laws and regulations and 
has invested financial and managerial resources to ensure 
such compliance. Such expenditures historically have not 

been material to Trican. However, because such laws and 
regulations are subject to change it is impossible for Trican 
to predict the cost or impact of such laws and regulations 
on its future operations, nor their impact on its customers’ 
activities and thereby on the demand for its services.

Trican’s Operations are Subject to Inherent 
Hazards Which May Not be Covered by Insurance  

Trican’s operations are subject to hazards inherent in the 
oil and gas service industry, such as equipment defects, 
damage, loss, malfunctions and failures, and natural 
disasters which may result in fires, vehicle accidents, 
explosions and uncontrollable flows of natural gas or well 
fluids that can cause personal injury, loss of life, suspension 
of operations, damage to formations, damage to facilities, 
business interruptions, and damage to or destruction of 
property and equipment. These hazards could expose 
Trican to liability for personal injury, wrongful death, 
product liability, property damage and other environmental 
damages. Trican continuously monitors its activities for 
quality control and safety and maintains insurance coverage 
it believes to be adequate and customary in the industry. 
Additionally, Trican seeks to obtain indemnification from 
its customers by contract for certain of the above risks. 
However, such insurance and indemnities may not be 
adequate to cover Trican’s liabilities and may not be 
available in the future at rates Trican considers reasonable 
and commercially justifiable. If the Company were to incur 
substantial liability and such damages were not covered 
by insurance or were in excess of policy limits, or if the 
Company were to incur such liability at a time when it is 
not able to obtain liability insurance, its business, financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flow could be 
materially adversely affected.  

Compliance with Various Environmental Laws, 
Rules, Legislation and Guidelines Could Impose 
Greater Costs on Trican’s Business or Lead to a 
Decline in the Demand for Services  

Participants in the well services industry are subject to 
various environmental laws and regulations. These laws and 
regulations primarily govern the manufacture, processing, 
importation, transportation, handling and disposal of 
certain materials used in Trican’s operations and may require 
extensive remediation or impose civil or criminal liability for 
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violations. Trican’s customers are subject to similar laws and 
regulations. Industry participants are also subject to limits 
on emissions into the air and discharges into surface and 
sub-surface waters. 

Recent regulatory initiatives have been undertaken in 
various jurisdictions to address assertions that hydraulic 
fracturing processes use chemicals that could affect 
drinking water supplies. Legislation has been enacted 
in some jurisdictions and is being proposed in others 
that require the energy industry to publicly disclose 
the chemicals it mixes with water and sand it pumps 
underground in the fracturing process. These actual and 
proposed legislative changes could lead to delays and 
increased operating costs. The adoption of any future 
federal or state laws or implementing regulations in Canada 
and/or the United States, or in other jurisdictions in which 
the Company carries on business, which impose reporting 
obligations on, or otherwise limit the hydraulic fracturing 
process could reduce demand for pressure pumping 
services or make it more difficult for the Company to 
provide fracturing services for natural gas and oil wells and 
could affect the Company’s ability to utilize proprietary 
technological developments to compete effectively in 
the pressure pumping industry. This could have a material 
adverse impact on the Company’s financial position and 
operating results.

Stringent Regulation of Fracturing Services Could 
Have a Material Adverse Impact on the Company’s 
Financial Position and Operating Results

Trican is subject to increasingly stringent environmental 
laws and regulations, some of which may provide for 
strict liability for damages to natural resources or threats 
to public health or safety. While Trican maintains liability 
insurance, the insurance is subject to coverage limits 
and may exclude coverage for damage resulting from 
environmental contamination. There can be no assurance 
that insurance will continue to be available to Trican on 
commercially reasonable terms, that the possible types of 
environmental liability will be covered by insurance or that 
the dollar amount of such liabilities will not exceed Trican’s 
policy limits. Even a partially insured claim, if successful and 
of sufficient magnitude, could have a material adverse effect 
on Trican’s business, results of operations and prospects.  

Future regulatory developments could have the effect 
of reducing industry activity. Trican cannot predict the 
nature of the restrictions that may be imposed. Increase in 
production in the oil and gas industry from unconventional 
sources has raised concerns over hydraulic fracturing and 
seismic-related services, which may result in increased 
regulation. Regulatory approval processes for oil and gas 
exploration and development activities, including the 
scope of regulatory oversight and permitting and approval 
requirements, and the time it takes to receive necessary 
permits and applicable regulatory approvals could be 
slowed or unfavorable due to the influence from the 
evolving role of activists and their impact on public opinion 
and government policy related to energy development 
projects and the utilization of hydraulic fracturing 
technology and processes in particular. The adoption of 
future federal, state, local or foreign laws or implementing 
regulations imposing reporting obligations on, or limiting 
or banning, the hydraulic fracturing process could make 
it more difficult to complete natural gas or oil wells and 
could have a material adverse effect on Trican’s liquidity, 
consolidated results of operations, and consolidated 
financial condition. Trican may be required to increase 
operating expenses or capital expenditures in order to 
comply with any new restrictions or regulations. Such 
expenditures could be material. 

We are also aware that some countries, provinces, states, 
counties and municipalities have enacted or are considering 
moratoria on hydraulic fracturing. Additionally, Trican’s 
business could be affected by a moratorium on related 
operations, such as sand mining, which provides proppant, 
a key input for our hydraulic fracturing operations. It is not 
possible to estimate how these various restrictions could 
affect Trican’s operations.  

Failure to Maintain Trican’s Safety Standards      
and Record Could Lead to a Decline in the 
Demand for Services  

Standards for the prevention of incidents in the oil and 
gas industry are governed by service company safety 
policies and procedures, accepted industry safety practices, 
customer specific safety requirements and health and 
safety legislation. In order to ensure compliance, Trican has 
developed and implemented safety and training programs, 
which it believes meet or exceed the applicable standards. 
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A key factor considered by customers in retaining oilfield 
service providers is safety. Deterioration of Trican’s safety 
performance could result in a decline in the demand for 
Trican’s services and could have a material adverse effect on 
its revenues, cash flows and profitability.  

Trican may be Subject to Litigation, Contingent 
Liabilities and Potential Unknown Liabilities

From time to time, Trican is subject to costs and other 
effects of legal and administrative proceedings, settlements, 
reviews, claims and actions. Trican may in the future 
be involved in disputes with other parties which could 
result in litigation or other actions, proceedings or related 
matters including in relation to its historical option granting 
practices.

Furthermore, there may be unknown liabilities assumed by 
Trican in relation to prior acquisitions or dispositions as well 
as environmental or tax issues. The discovery of any material 
liabilities could have an adverse effect on Trican’s financial 
condition and results.  

The results of litigation or any other proceedings or related 
matters cannot be precisely predicted due to uncertainty 
as to the final outcome. Trican’s assessment of the likely 
outcome of these matters is based on its judgement of 
a number of factors including past history, precedents, 
relevant financial and other evidence and facts specific to 
the matter as known at the time of the assessment. 

Trican may be Subject to Litigation if Another 
Party Claims that We Have Infringed upon its 
Intellectual Property Rights

The tools, techniques, methodologies, programs and 
components Trican uses to provide services may infringe 
upon the intellectual property rights of others. Infringement 
claims generally result in significant legal and other costs 
and may distract management from running our core 
business. Royalty payments under licenses from third 
parties, if available, would also increase Trican’s costs. If 
a license was not available, Trican might not be able to 
continue providing a particular service or product, which 
could adversely affect Trican’s financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows. Additionally, developing non-
infringing technologies would increase Trican’s costs.

Trican may be Adversely Impacted by a      
Shortage of Qualified Personnel 

Trican requires highly skilled personnel to operate and 
provide technical services and support for its business. 
Competition for the personnel required for its businesses 
intensifies as activity increases. Trican’s ability to manage the 
costs associated with recruiting, training and retention of a 
highly skilled workforce could impact its business. In periods 
of high utilization it may become more difficult to find and 
retain qualified individuals. This could increase Trican’s costs 
or have other adverse effects on its operations.  

There are Certain Risks Associated with Trican’s 
Dependence on Third-Party Suppliers 

Trican sources raw materials, such as oilfield cement, 
proppant, guar, nitrogen, carbon dioxide and coiled 
tubing, from a variety of suppliers, most of whom are 
located in Canada, Russia and the United States. Alternate 
suppliers exist for all raw materials. The source and supply 
of materials has been consistent in the past; however, in 
periods of high industry activity, Trican has occasionally 
experienced periodic shortages of certain materials. In 
addition, in periods of low activity, there is a risk that Trican’s 
key suppliers are in financial distress and may not be able 
to provide the products required. Management maintains 
relationships with a number of suppliers in an attempt 
to mitigate this risk. However, if the current suppliers are 
unable to provide the necessary materials, or otherwise fail 
to deliver products in the quantities required, any resulting 
delays in the provision of services to Trican’s clients could 
have a material adverse effect on its results of operations 
and financial condition. 

Trican may also have prepaid deposits with suppliers 
relating to inventory or property and equipment. The 
recoverability of these prepayments are subject to the 
financial health of the relevant suppliers.  

Merger and Acquisition Activity of our Customers 
May Reduce the Demand for Trican’s Services 

Merger and acquisition activity in the oil and gas exploration 
and production sector may constrain demand for the 
Company’s services as customers focus on reorganizing 
the business prior to committing funds to exploration and 
development projects. Further, the acquiring company may 
have preferred supplier relationships with oilfield service 
providers other than Trican.
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New Technology Could Place Trican at a 
Disadvantage versus Competitors

The ability of the Company to meet customer demands 
in respect of performance and cost will depend upon 
continuous improvements in operating equipment. There 
can be no assurance that the Company will be successful 
in its efforts in this regard or that it will have the resources 
available to meet this continuing demand. Failure by 
Trican to do so could have a material adverse effect on 
the Company’s business, financial condition, results of 
operation and cash flows. No assurances can be given that 
competitors will not achieve technological advantages over 
the Company.

Operations with Independent Third Parties     
Could Create Uncertainty

Trican conducts some operations whereby control may 
be shared with unaffiliated third parties. Although Trican 
currently has a controlling interest in such arrangements, 
differences in views among participants may result in 
delayed decisions or in failures to agree on major issues. 
Trican may enter into similar arrangements as we pursue 
additional opportunities. Although the Company has not 
been constrained by our participation in such arrangements 
to date, no assurance can be given that the actions or 
decisions of third parties will not affect our business in a 
way that hinders our operations.

Possible Failure to Realize Anticipated Benefits     
of Acquisitions

Trican has completed acquisitions and may complete 
additional acquisitions to strengthen its position in its 
industry and to create opportunity to realize certain 
benefits, including, among other things, potential cost 
savings. Achieving the benefits of any future acquisitions 
depends, in part, on successfully consolidating functions 
and integrating operations, procedures and personnel in 
a timely and efficient manner, as well as Trican’s ability to 
realize the anticipated growth opportunities and synergies 
from combining the acquired businesses and operations 
with its own. The integration of acquired businesses 
requires the dedication of substantial management effort, 
time and resources which may divert management’s focus 
and resources from other strategic opportunities and from 
operational matters during this process. The integration 
process may result in the loss of key employees and the 

disruption of ongoing business, customer and employee 
relationships that may adversely affect Trican’s ability to 
achieve the anticipated benefits of these future acquisitions. 

Improper Access to Confidential Information 
Could Harm Trican’s Reputation

Trican’s efforts to protect our confidential information, as 
well as the confidential information of our customers, may 
be unsuccessful due to the actions of third parties, software 
bugs or other technical malfunctions, employee error or 
malfeasance, lost or damaged data as a result of a natural 
disaster, intentional harm done to software by hackers, or 
other factors. If any of these events occur, this information 
could be accessed or disclosed improperly. Any incidents 
involving unauthorized access to confidential information 
could damage our reputation and diminish our competitive 
position. In addition, the affected customers could initiate 
legal or regulatory action against us in connection with 
such incidents, which could cause Trican to incur significant 
expense. Any of these events could have a material and 
adverse effect on the Company’s business, reputation, or 
financial results. 

Ability to Pay Dividends

The payment of dividends is at the discretion of our Board. 
All dividends will be reviewed by the Board and may be 
increased, reduced or suspended from time to time. Our 
ability to pay dividends and the actual amount of such 
dividends is dependent upon, among other things, our 
financial performance, our debt covenants and obligations, 
our ability to refinance our debt obligations on similar 
terms and at similar interest rates, our working capital 
requirements, our future tax obligations, our future capital 
requirements, the satisfaction of applicable solvency tests in 
the Business Corporations Act (Alberta) and the risk factors 
set forth in this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING
Disclosure Controls & Procedures 

Disclosure controls and procedures (DC&P), as defined in 
National Instrument 52-109 Certification of Disclosure in 
Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings (NI 52-109), are designed 
to provide reasonable assurance that information required 
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to be disclosed in reports filed with, or submitted to, 
securities regulatory authorities is recorded, processed, 
summarized and reported within the time periods specified 
under Canadian securities law. DC&P include controls and 
procedures designed to ensure that information required 
to be disclosed is accumulated and communicated to 
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and 
the Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely 
decisions regarding required disclosure. 

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer 
of Trican evaluated the effectiveness of the design and 
operation of the Company’s DC&P. Based on that evaluation, 
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
concluded that Trican’s DC&P were effective as at December 
31, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Trican’s Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial 
Officer are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal control over financial reporting (ICFR), as such term 
is defined in NI 52-109. They have, as at the financial year 
ended December 31, 2014, designed ICFR, or caused it to 
be designed under their supervision, to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with IFRS. The control framework 
the officers used to design Trican’s ICFR is the Internal 
Control - Integrated Framework (2013) published by The 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (COSO).

Trican’s ICFR includes policies and procedures that:

�� Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
transactions, acquisitions and dispositions of assets of 
the Company;

�� Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles; and

�� Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention, or 
timely detection, of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Trican conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of 
its ICFR as at December 31, 2014, based on the COSO 
Framework, under the supervision of the Chief Executive 
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. Based on this 
evaluation, the Officers concluded that as of December 31, 
2014, Trican’s ICFR is effective. 

While the Officers believe that Trican’s controls are effective, 
they do not expect that the disclosure controls and 
procedures or internal control over financial reporting will 
prevent all errors and fraud. A control system, no matter 
how well conceived or operated, provides reasonable, but 
not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control 
system are met.

There were no changes in the Company’s ICFR during the 
year ended December 31, 2014 that materially affected the 
Company’s ICFR.
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selected annual information
($ 000’s, except per share amounts and          

operational information) 2014 2013 2012
Revenue $2,703,858 $2,115,472 $2,213,400
Net income / (loss) (5,045) (45,854) 53,674
Earnings per share
	 Basic (0.03) (0.31) 0.37
	 Diluted (0.03) (0.31) 0.37
Funds provided by operations* 228,125 129,970 126,757
Capital expenditures 90,012 107,761 442,550
Total assets 2,536,864 2,413,647 2,396,519
Total long-term financial liabilities 758,545 593,786 694,972
Shareholders' equity 1,285,280 1,346,949 1,374,812
Average shares outstanding - Basic 149,286 148,815 146,620
Average shares outstanding - Diluted 149,286 148,815 146,690
Shares outstanding at year end 149,106 148,918 146,450
Dividend per share $0.30 $0.30 $0.30

* See first page of this report.

2013 versus 2012 – Selected Annual Information

Consolidated revenue for 2013 decreased by 4% to $2.1 
billion compared to 2012, and the net loss was $45.9 million 
versus net income of $53.7 million in 2012. Diluted earnings 
per share decreased to a loss of $0.31 from income of $0.37 
and funds provided by operations increased to $130.8 

million from $126.8 million.

Canadian revenue for 2013 decreased by 10% compared to 
2012. Overall pressure pumping demand in Canada was up 
in 2013 compared to 2012; however, a 22% average decrease 
in price more than offset the higher demand. The Canadian 
pressure pumping industry added a significant amount of 
equipment to the region throughout 2011 and 2012, and the 
increased equipment supply led to reduced pricing in 2013. 
Year-over-year Canadian demand increases were largely due 
to an increase in horizontal drilling, an increase in fracturing 
stages per well and increased activity in emerging Canadian 
plays, such as the Duvernay. Canadian operating margins 
decreased by 740 basis points in 2013 compared to 2012 
largely due to lower pricing. 

U.S. revenue decreased to $765.0 in 2013 compared to 
$797.8 in 2012. The 4% decline was primarily due to lower 
pricing for the U.S. fracturing service line, offset partially 
by growth in the U.S. cementing and completion tools 
operations. The U.S. pressure pumping market was over 

supplied with equipment at the beginning of 2013 and 
remained over-supplied throughout the year. These weak 
market fundamentals made it difficult to maintain strong 
utilization levels throughout all of our U.S. operating regions 
and also kept downward pressure on pricing throughout 
most of the year. Successful cost cutting initiatives and a 
reduction in guar costs led to year-over-year improvements 
in U.S. operating margins. These margin improvements were 
partially offset by lower pricing.  

International revenue increased by 19% on a year-over-
year basis due largely to an increase in fracturing activity 
in Russia. The Russian pressure pumping market continued 
to benefit from an increase in horizontal drilling and 
completions activity in the region. In addition, we continued 
to make progress on expanding our Australian cementing 
business and also established an international completion 
tools business during 2013. Despite the activity increases 
in Russia, heavy competition and cost inflation limited the 
operating margin improvements in the region during 2013. 
Weak results for our Algeria operations and start-up costs in 
Saudi Arabia and Colombia also contributed to lower year-
over-year operating margins during 2013.  

The over-supply of pressure pumping equipment in 
both Canada and the U.S. led to a substantial decrease in 
expansion initiatives and capital expenditures in 2013 versus 
2012.
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Q4 – 2014

�� Consolidated revenue for the fourth quarter of 2014 
was $755.4 million, an increase of 37% compared to 
the fourth quarter of 2013. The adjusted consolidated 
profit was $33.0 million and adjusted diluted profit per 
share was $0.22 compared to a loss of $15.8 million and 
a diluted loss per share of $0.11 in the same period of 
2013. 

�� Our Canadian operations generated quarterly revenue 
of $342.9 million and operating income of $74.8 million 
during the fourth quarter of 2014 compared to revenue 
of $286.9 million and operating income of $53.1 million 
in the fourth quarter of 2013. Canadian revenue and 
operating income benefitted from strong activity levels 
and a continued increase in fracturing intensity per well. 
Despite the strong quarterly results, activity declined 
substantially near the end of the fourth quarter with 
rig count falling approximately 50% over the last two 
weeks of December. Although a decline was expected, 
the extent of the slow-down exceeded expectations 
due to the impact of lower oil prices. 

�� Our U.S. operations generated fourth quarter revenue 
of $340.7 million, an increase of 96% compared to the 

Operational Information 2014 2013 2012
Canadian operations
	 Number of jobs completed 21,752 21,287 22,427
	 Revenue per job $56,144 $47,553 50,486
United States operations
	 Number of jobs completed 12,750 8,789 7,110
	 Revenue per job $90,533 $83,220 112,471
International operations
	 Number of jobs completed 4,597 4,182 4,007
	 Revenue per job $67,924 75,861 65,027

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

($ millions, except per share amounts; unaudited)

2014 2013

Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1
Revenue 755.4 770.6 534.6 643.2 552.1 548.3 396.6 618.4
Profit / (loss) for the period 4.9 41.6 (43.1) (8.5) (20.8) 5.7 (56.4) 25.4
Earnings / (loss) per share
	 Basic 0.03 0.28 (0.29) (0.06) (0.14) 0.04 (0.38) 0.17
	 Diluted 0.03 0.28 (0.29) (0.06) (0.14) 0.04 (0.38) 0.17

fourth quarter of 2013. Operational improvements in the 
U.S. combined with an increase in fracturing demand 
provided opportunities to deploy additional fracturing 
crews and led to strong equipment utilization during 
the fourth quarter of 2014.  Strong equipment utilization 
combined with improved sand logistics management 
led to a 1500 basis point increase in year-over-year U.S. 
operating margins. Despite the improvements to our 
U.S. financial results, we began to see the impact of low 
oil prices late in the fourth quarter with a significant 
decrease in activity over the second half of December.

�� Our international operations generated quarterly 
revenue of $71.8 million and operating income of $6.7 
million during the fourth quarter of 2014 compared to 
revenue of $91.8 million and operating income of $6.8 
million in the fourth quarter of 2013. Fourth quarter 
operating conditions in Russia are usually impacted 
by extreme cold temperatures; however, similar to 
2013, our Russian customers remained active in order 
to complete 2014 work programs despite the cold 
weather. The devaluation of the Russian ruble relative 
to the Canadian dollar had a significant impact on 
the fourth quarter financial results for our Russian 
operations. 
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Q3 – 2014

�� Consolidated revenue for the third quarter of 2014 was 
$770.6 million, an increase of 41% compared to the third 
quarter of 2013. Adjusted consolidated profit was $41.8 
million, an increase of 344% over 2013, and adjusted 
diluted profit per share was $0.28, an increase of 314% 
compared to 2013. 

�� Canadian operations generated quarterly revenue of 
$360.9 million and operating income of $97.3 million 
during the third quarter of 2014 compared to revenue of 
$277.1 million and operating income of $69.3 million in 
the third quarter of 2013. Canadian fracturing demand 
growth was the most significant contributor to the 30% 
increase in year-over-year revenue. Canadian fracturing 
demand benefitted from an increase in fracturing 
intensity per well and additional capital spending by 
our Canadian customer base. Canadian results for the 
third quarter of 2014 also benefited from an increase in 
24-hour operations and the successful completion of a 
large Horn River project. 

�� U.S. operations generated third quarter revenue 
of $314.6 million, up 72% from the third quarter of 
2013. Increased fracturing demand due to a rise in 
fracturing intensity led to year-over-year and sequential 
utilization improvements in most U.S. regions. Strong 
demand provided opportunities to deploy existing 
idle fracturing capacity in the Bakken and Permian 
regions during the third quarter of 2014 contributing 
to the revenue increase. Revenue in the third quarter 
benefitted from pricing gains realized in the Permian 
reflective of service quality improvements and strong 
overall activity levels in the region. U.S. operating 
margins improved sequentially by 170 basis points as 
gains from higher pricing and utilization were partially 
offset by increased sand logistics costs. 

�� International operations generated quarterly revenue 
of $95.2 million and operating income of $13.5 million 
during the third quarter of 2014 compared to revenue 
of $88.2 million and operating income of $12.5 million 
in the third quarter of 2013. Russian activity levels were 
strong during the quarter, benefitting from a continued 
increase in horizontal drilling and completions activity 
in the region. Revenue growth from strong Russian 
activity was partially offset by a weaker Russian ruble 
that led to a revenue decrease in Canadian dollars. Our 

international operations also benefitted from strong 
results from our Norwegian completions tools business 
as revenue for this division increased by more than 
200% year-over-year and 75% sequentially. Positive 
results in Russia, Kazakhstan and Norway were partially 
offset by operating losses in Algeria and start-up costs 
in Saudi Arabia and Colombia. 

Q2 – 2014

�� Consolidated revenue for the second quarter of 2014 
was $534.6 million, an increase of 35% compared to the 
second quarter of 2013. The consolidated net loss was 
$41.2 million compared to $50.4 million, and diluted loss 
per share was $0.28 compared to $0.34 for the same 
period in 2013. 

�� Our Canadian operations generated quarterly revenue 
of $171.9 million and an operating loss of $8.0 million 
during the second quarter of 2014. Canadian revenue 
increased year-over-year by 48% and operating 
margins improved by 640 basis points compared to the 
second quarter of 2013. The second quarter in Canada 
is typically impacted by spring break-up conditions; 
however, an improving macro-economic environment 
for the Canadian pressure pumping market, combined 
with an extended winter drilling season in April, 
contributed to year-over-year increases. Although 
Canadian operating margins benefitted from higher 
activity during the second quarter, increased costs and 
weak pricing continued to negatively impact operating 
income. To improve profitability, a 7% price book 
increase was released during the quarter. 

�� Our U.S. operations generated second quarter revenue 
of $267.6 million, an increase of 33% compared to the 
second quarter of 2013. Strong demand and operational 
performance in the Marcellus and Permian regions 
contributed to the increased revenue and led to 
sequential improvements in operating margins. High 
demand for our services in the Bakken during the 
second quarter continued due to strong operational 
performance and a second crew will be deployed in 
the region in the third quarter of 2014. Gains in the 
Marcellus, Permian and Bakken regions were partially 
offset by losses relating to the closure of our operating 
base in Woodward. The Woodward fracturing crew was 
re-located to the Permian during the second quarter. 
Operations in the Barnett, Oklahoma and Haynesville 
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performed below expectations during the second 
quarter and also had a negative impact on second 
quarter operating margins. 

�� Second quarter revenue for our international operations 
was $95.1 million, an increase of 20% compared to 
the second quarter of 2014. The substantial increase 
in revenue led to a quarterly operating margin of 
16.4% for our international operations. Our Russian 
operations had record quarterly revenue during 
the second quarter. A rise in horizontal drilling and 
completions activity continued to benefit pressure 
pumping demand in Russia. In addition, our Russian 
customers were able to catch-up up on work programs 
that were behind schedule due to cold weather in the 
first quarter of 2014. Our international operations also 
benefitted from strong results from our completions 
tools business in Norway as year-over-year revenue 
for this division increased by almost 200% during the 
second quarter. Positive results in Russia and the North 
Sea were partially offset by operating losses in Algeria 
and start-up costs in Saudi Arabia and Colombia. Active 
operations commenced in both Saudi Arabia and 
Colombia during the second quarter.

Q1 – 2014

�� Consolidated revenue for the first quarter of 2014 was 
$643.2 million, an increase of 4% compared to the first 
quarter of 2013. The adjusted consolidated loss was $6.3 
million compared to profit of $27.6 million, and adjusted 
loss per share was $0.04 compared to profit of $0.18 for 
the same period in 2013. 

�� Canadian revenue increased by 4% while operating 
margins decreased 880 basis points compared to the 
first quarter of 2013. Canadian equipment utilization 
levels were high for most of the quarter due to an 
extended winter drilling season that kept pressure 
pumping demand strong to the end of March. Pressure 
pumping demand also benefitted from improving 
Canadian market fundamentals as Canadian commodity 
prices and a weakening Canadian dollar led to increased 
cash flows for our customers. Despite the strong 
demand, Canadian operating margins were below 
expectations due to a low pricing environment and 
increased costs. Higher diesel prices, increased sand 
hauling requirements and a stronger U.S. dollar have all 
contributed to the rising cost structure in Canada.

�� U.S. revenue for the first quarter of 2014 was relatively 
consistent with the first quarter of 2013 and was up 
22% sequentially. Although operating income increased 
on a sequential basis, our U.S. operations incurred an 
operating loss of $1.0 million in the first quarter of 2014. 
U.S. equipment utilization was negatively impacted 
by unfavorable weather conditions in January and 
February in the Marcellus, Permian and Oklahoma 
regions. The financial performance of our U.S. 
operations improved substantially in March as operating 
conditions improved. 

�� International revenue for the first quarter of 2014 
increased by 12% and operating margins improved by 
340 basis points compared to the first quarter of 2013. 
As expected, cold weather at the start of the quarter 
negatively impacted Russian activity levels; however, 
Russian activity rebounded strongly near the end of 
the first quarter once operating conditions improved. 
First quarter revenue and operating margins increased 
substantially for the Norwegian completion tools 
business on both a year-over-year and sequential basis. 
Strong customer acceptance of the completion tools 
technology in this region has led to improved financial 
performance for this division. International operating 
margins in the first quarter of 2014 were negatively 
impacted by increased start-up costs incurred in both 
Saudi Arabia and Colombia. 

Q4 – 2013

�� Consolidated revenue for the fourth quarter of 2013 
was $552.1 million, an increase of 14% compared to 
the fourth quarter of 2012. The adjusted consolidated 
loss was $9.9 million compared to $5.4 million, and 
adjusted loss per share was $0.07 compared to $0.04 
for the same period in 2012. Adjusted profit excluded 
a one-time depreciation charge of $10.7 million (net of 
tax) relating to accelerated depreciation on fluid ends in 
Canada.

�� Our Canadian operations earned quarterly revenue of 
$286.9 million in the fourth quarter of 2013, an increase 
of 17% compared to the fourth quarter of 2012. Fourth 
quarter operating income was $53.1 million, which was 
up 4% on a year-over-year basis. Canadian revenue 
increased sequentially by 3% due to the strong demand 
in October and November; however, operating margins 
decreased sequentially by 660 basis points. Fourth 
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quarter margins were negatively impacted by cost 
increases and pricing declines. Cost increases were 
driven primarily by higher third-party hauling, fuel, and 
repairs and maintenance expenses. Canadian fracturing 
prices decreased by approximately 3% and cementing 
prices decreased by approximately 1%, on a sequential 
basis, which also had a negative impact on fourth 
quarter operating margins. 

�� Revenue in the fourth quarter of 2013 for our U.S. 
operations was relatively consistent with the fourth 
quarter of 2012, but decreased by 4% on a sequential 
basis. Revenue for our U.S. pressure pumping business 
was down sequentially, largely due to reduced activity 
in the Marcellus play. As expected, our key customers in 
the Marcellus decreased spending levels as 2013 capital 
budgeted were completed. In addition, winter weather 
led to reduced industry activity in the Permian during 
fourth quarter of 2013. Lower revenue from our pressure 
pumping business was partially offset by a 50% increase 
in revenue for our U.S. completion tools business. 
Our U.S. operations incurred an operating loss of $8.3 
million during the fourth quarter as operating margins 
were negatively impacted by both reduced pressure 
pumping activity and lower pricing. 

�� Revenue from International operations was $91.8 
compared to $68.0 in the fourth quarter of 2012.  The 
majority of international revenue is generated from our 
Russian operations and pressure pumping demand was 
strong in this region throughout the fourth quarter of 
2013. Favorable weather conditions allowed our Russian 
customers to remain active throughout the quarter 
and catch-up on 2013 capital spending plans that were 
behind schedule for most of 2013. Although Russia 
operating margins improved on a year-over-year basis, 
continued cost inflation limited the margin increase. 
Weak results for our Algerian operations and start-up 
costs in both Saudi Arabia and Colombia also had a 
negative impact on international operating margins 
during the fourth quarter of 2013. 

Q3 – 2013 

�� Consolidated revenue for the third quarter of 2013 
was $548.3 million, a decrease of 8% compared to 
the third quarter of 2012. The adjusted consolidated 
profit was $9.7 million compared to $24.7 million, and 
adjusted profit per share was $0.07 compared to $0.17 

for the same period in 2012. Adjusted profit excludes 
a tax adjusted one-time loss of $2.1 million relating to 
deposits held with an insolvent vendor. 

�� Our Canadian operations generated quarterly revenue 
of $279.9 million and operating income of $72.1 million 
during the third quarter of 2013. Canadian revenue 
decreased by 13% and operating margins decreased by 
530 basis points compared to the third quarter of 2012. 
These declines were caused largely by a 20% average 
decrease in overall Canadian pricing compared to the 
third quarter of 2012. Canadian activity levels in the 
third quarter of 2013 were also negatively impacted by 
wet weather during the first two weeks of the quarter. 
Despite the decrease in year-over-year financial results, 
Canadian fracturing and cementing demand were 
steady throughout most of the quarter, led by increased 
demand in the Duvernay and strong activity levels in 
key Canadian plays such as the Montney, Cardium and 
Deep Basin. Canadian fracturing results also benefitted 
from a large Horn River project that was completed 
during the quarter. The Canadian market remained 
very competitive during the quarter but a modest price 
recovery of 4% was realized compared to the second 
quarter of 2013.

�� Our U.S. operations generated third quarter revenue 
of $183.1 million, a decrease of 8% compared to the 
third quarter of 2012 and 9% compared to the second 
quarter of 2013. In addition, U.S. operating margins 
decreased sequentially by 110 basis points. The U.S. 
pressure pumping market remained very competitive 
and over-supplied with equipment during the third 
quarter of 2013. Overall U.S. pricing stabilized somewhat 
and was down 2% compared to the second quarter 
of 2013. Activity levels were down sequentially and 
year over year for our operations in Oklahoma and we 
did not perform any fracturing jobs in the Haynesville 
during the third quarter of 2013. Decreased activity in 
the Haynesville and Oklahoma was partially offset by 
steady demand and activity levels in the Marcellus, 
which led to sequential and year-over-year revenue 
and operating income growth for our four Marcellus 
fracturing crews. 

�� Third quarter revenue for our International operations 
was $88.2 million, an increase of 22% compared to 
the third quarter of 2012. Russian revenue was up 
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year-over-year as an increase in horizontal drilling and 
completions activity led to increased customer demand 
in Russia. In addition, international revenue benefitted 
from growth in Australia as well as growth for our 
international completion tools division. 

Q2 – 2013

�� Consolidated revenue for the second quarter of 2013 
was $396.6 million, a decrease of 5% compared to the 
second quarter of 2012. The adjusted consolidated net 
loss was $50.4 million compared to $48.6 million, and 
adjusted diluted loss per share was $0.34 compared 
to $0.33 for the same period in 2012. Adjusted loss 
per share for the second quarter of 2013 excluded a 
goodwill impairment write-down of $4.1 million relating 
to our Australia operations and $1.9 million in non-cash 
stock-based compensation expense. 

�� Our Canadian operations generated quarterly revenue 
of $116.1 million and an operating loss of $12.8 million 
during the second quarter of 2013. Canadian revenue 
decreased by 17% and operating income decreased by 
1030 basis points compared to the second quarter of 
2012. The second quarter in Canada is typically impacted 
by spring break-up conditions; however, spring break-up 
extended later into the quarter during 2013. Operating 
conditions were also negatively impacted by increased 
rainfall throughout much of western Canada during the 
second quarter. The adverse weather conditions led 
to a decrease in second quarter industry activity levels 
compared to the second quarter of 2012. 

�� Our U.S. operations generated second quarter revenue 
of $201.5 million, a decrease of 4% compared to the 
first quarter of 2013. Second quarter activity levels in 
the U.S. were relatively stable compared to the first 
quarter of 2013 as the U.S. rig count remained virtually 
unchanged. Our U.S. operating margins decreased by 
430 basis points sequentially, as pricing declines were 
partially offset by further progress made on cost-cutting 
initiatives. Pricing decreased, on a sequential basis, 
by 8%, due largely to the renewal of three fracturing 
contracts late in the first quarter where pricing was 
adjusted down to reflect current market pricing. Activity 
levels and utilization remained strong in the Marcellus 
during the second quarter, and in response to this 
strong demand, we deployed a third full-time fracturing 
crew in this region late in the second quarter.

�� Second quarter revenue for our International operations 
was $79.0 million and the operating income was $3.6 
million. Russian revenue was up year over year as an 
increase in horizontal drilling and completions activity 
led to increased customer demand in Russia. Despite 
the revenue increases, second quarter results in Russia 
were slightly below expectations due to continued 
customer delays. In addition, operating margins are 
down year over year in Russia as pricing increases 
obtained in the 2013 work tenders have been more 
than offset by cost inflation. 

Q1 – 2013

�� Consolidated revenue for the first quarter of 2013 was 
$618.4 million, a decrease of 14% compared to the first 
quarter of 2012. Consolidated net income was $25.2 
million compared to net income of $89.4 million, and 
diluted income per share was $0.17 compared to diluted 
income per share of $0.61 for the same period in 2012. 

�� Our Canadian operations generated quarterly revenue 
of $338.6 million and operating income of $89.8 million 
during the first quarter of 2013. Canadian revenue 
decreased by 22% and operating income decreased 
by 44% compared to the first quarter of 2012. The 
majority of the year-over-year decreases in revenue and 
operating income were caused by a 19% decline in 
Canadian pricing. Canadian activity levels were relatively 
strong in the first quarter as the number of wells 
drilled increased by 4% compared to the first quarter 
of 2012 and by 31% compared to the fourth quarter. 
The substantial increase in first quarter Canadian 
activity compared to the fourth quarter of 2012 led to 
sequential increases in revenue of 39% and operating 
income of 76% for our Canadian operations.

�� Our U.S. operations generated first quarter revenue of 
$210.7 million and operating income of $18.0 million. 
U.S. revenue increased by 21% compared to the 
fourth quarter of 2012 due largely to a 25% increase in 
equipment utilization. First quarter utilization for our 
U.S. operations benefited from Trican’s technology 
offering. Our U.S. operations were able to secure work 
in the first quarter through key technology offerings 
such as our BPS Completion Tool and water recycling 
services. U.S. operating margins improved by 970 basis 
points on a sequential basis due to increased utilization, 
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Three                                             
months ended

Twelve                
months ended

($ thousands) Dec. 31,     
2014

Dec. 31,       
2013

Sept. 30,     
2014

Dec. 31,     
2014

Dec. 31,       
2013

Adjusted net (loss) / income $32,961 ($15,841) $41,829 $29,985 ($36,349)
Deduct:
	 Asset impairments (2014 - net of $0.4 m tax recovery) 11,966 - - 11,966 4,123
	 Non-cash share-based compensation expense 1,642 2,209 2,304 8,026 8,096
	 Fluid end depreciation adjustment (net of $2.4 m tax recovery) (1) - 7,153 - - -
	 Foreign exchange loss / (gain) 14,453 (5,968) (2,115) 15,038 (4,859)
	 Intangible amortization adjustment (net of $0.5 m tax recovery) (2) - 1,595 - - -
	 Loss on deposit with vendor (net of $0.7 m in tax recovery) - - - - 2,145
Profit / (loss) for the period (IFRS financial measure) $4,900 ($20,830) $41,640 ($5,045) ($45,854)

Three months ended Nine months ended
($ thousands) Dec. 31,     

2014
Dec. 31,       

2013
Sept. 30,     

2014
Dec. 31,     

2014
Dec. 31,       

2013
Funds provided by operations $90,146 $30,000 $114,035 $229,569 $129,970
Charges to income not involving cash
	 Depreciation and amortization (53,843) (70,085) (53,326) (209,056) (222,403)
	 Amortization of debt issuance costs (218) (216) (216) (866) (864)
	 Stock-based compensation (1,642) (2,209) (2,304) (8,026) (8,096)
	 Gain / (loss) on disposal of property and equipment (92) 15 (78) 400 (293)
	 Net finance costs (9,593) (8,122) (8,873) (37,112) (32,749)
	 Unrealized foreign exchange gain / (loss) (13,577) (1) 3,691 (13,722) 5,593
	 Asset impairments (12,361) - - (12,361) (6,993)
	 Income tax recovery / (expense) (10,293) 16,431 (11,053) 2,692 28,303
	 Non-controlling interest 1,916 380 822 3,815 845
Adjust for interest and tax outflows / (inflows)
	 Interest paid 15,037 12,956 4,488 39,287 34,794
	 Income tax (refund) / paid (580) 21 (5,546) 335 26,039
Profit / (loss) for the period (IFRS financial measure) $4,900 ($20,830) $41,640 ($5,045) ($45,854)

lower guar costs, and progress made on cost cutting 
initiatives. U.S. revenue decreased by 4% compared to 
the first quarter of 2012 as a 9% year-over-year decline in 
pricing was partially offset by increased activity for our 
cementing and coiled tubing service lines.

�� First quarter revenue for our International operations 
was $70.1 million and the operating loss was $2.1 
million. International revenue and operating income 
were below our expectations due largely to operational 
delays for several of our Russian customers.

NON-IFRS DISCLOSURE
Adjusted net income/(loss), operating income and funds 
provided by operations do not have any standardized 
meaning as prescribed by IFRS and, therefore, are 
considered non-IFRS measures. 

Adjusted net income/(loss) and funds provided by 
operations have been reconciled to profit and operating 
income has been reconciled to gross profit, being the most 
directly comparable measures calculated in accordance with 
IFRS. The reconciling items have been presented net of tax, 
where applicable.

(1) 	Depreciation and amortization expense for the fourth quarter of 2013 includes a $14.3 million charge for accelerated depreciation on fluid ends in Canada. $9.5 million of this adjustment ($7.2 
million net of tax) relates to periods prior to October 1, 2013 and has been excluded from adjusted net income for the fourth quarter of 2013.

(2)	Depreciation and amortization expense for the fourth quarter of 2013 includes $3.1 million in amortization on the intangible assets relating to the purchase of i-TEC. The purchase price 
accounting was not finalized until the fourth quarter of 2013; therefore, a catch-up entry was required to ensure that adequate amortization had been recorded as of December 31, 2013. $2.1 
million of this adjustment ($1.6 million net of tax) relates to periods prior to October 1, 2013 and has been excluded from adjusted net income for the fourth quarter.
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Three months ended Twelve months ended
($ thousands) Dec. 31,     

2014
Dec. 31,       

2013
Sept. 30,     

2014
Dec. 31,     

2014
Dec. 31,       

2013
Operating income $104,574 $35,500 $112,417 $260,678 $179,550

Add: Administrative expenses 20,468 26,064 30,422 122,476 114,836
Deduct: Depreciation expense (53,843) (70,085) (53,326) (209,056) (222,403)

Gross profit / (loss) (IFRS financial measure) $71,199 ($8,521) $89,513 $174,098 $71,983

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains certain forward-looking 
information and financial outlook based on Trican’s 
current expectations, estimates, projections and 
assumptions that were made by the Company in light 
of information available at the time the statement was 
made. Forward-looking information and financial outlook 
that address expectations or projections about the 
future, and other statements and information about the 
Company’s strategy for growth, expected and future 
expenditures, costs, operating and financial results, 

�� The expectation that activity 
levels in Colombia will not recover 
in the near future and that we 
will not resume operations 
in Colombia until economic 
conditions improve; 

�� The belief that obtaining 
additional contracts in Saudi 
Arabia will ensure a steady flow 
of activity, which will allow us to 
effectively expand our operations 
in this region;  

�� The expectation that activity 
and demand will be steady for 
our Norwegian completion tools 
division in 2015 based on current 
customer commitments; however, 
we will closely monitor activity in 
this region as it is expected to be 
impacted by low oil prices in 2015;

�� The plan to keep capital spending 
to a minimum throughout 2015; 

�� The expectation that, based 
on existing capital budget 
commitments, capital spending 
for Trican will be between $50 and 
$60 million during 2015; 

�� The expectation that sharp oil 
price declines and weak natural 
gas prices will result in a significant 
decrease in North American 
drilling and completions activity in 
2015 relative to 2014; 

�� The expectation that the slow-
down in Canadian activity over 
spring break-up will begin early 
and end late given the lack of 
urgency by our customers to drill 
and complete wells in the current 
commodity price environment;

�� The intention to park 15% to 
20% of our Canadian pressure 
pumping equipment by the end 
of the first quarter of 2015 and 
reduce fixed and variable costs 
associated with this equipment;

�� The intention to remain 
committed to the U.S. pressure 
pumping market long-term and 
the expectation that we emerge 
from the current downturn with a 
stronger U.S. business; 

�� The expectation that reductions 
in active equipment in North 
America will significantly reduce 
fixed costs and the belief that 
these reductions are a necessary 
response to the current and 
expected drop in Canadian and 
U.S. activity; 

�� The expectation that we will 
monitor the activity levels of our 
customers and make additional 
changes as required;

�� The expectation that we will see 
the early results of cost cutting 
measures in Canada and the U.S. 
in March of 2015;

future financing and capital activities are forward-
looking statements. Some forward-looking information 
and financial outlook are identified by the use of terms 
and phrases such as “anticipate,” “achieve”, “achievable,” 
“believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend”, “plan”, “planned”, 
and other similar terms and phrases. This forward-looking 
information and financial outlook speak only as of the 
date of this document and we do not undertake to 
publicly update this forward-looking information and 
financial outlook except in accordance with applicable 
securities laws. This forward-looking information and 
financial outlook include, among others:
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�� The belief that the most 
significant cost cutting initiatives 
relate to product, product 
transportation, and people costs;

�� The expectation that the salary 
reduction implemented on 
February 1, 2015, will result 
in annual cost savings of 
approximately $15 million for our 
Canadian operations, $10 million 
for our U.S. operations, and $3 
million for the Corporate division;

�� The belief that our ability to 
execute cost cutting measures 
effectively and efficiently will 
be critical in maintaining an 
acceptable level of profitability 
throughout this downturn;

�� The expectation that average 
Canadian pricing levels will 
decline by approximately 10% 
during the first quarter of 2015 
compared to recent peak pricing 
levels from the second half of 
2014;

�� The expectation that U.S. pricing 
declines will vary based on the 
region, customer and existing 
contract;

�� The expectation that the most 
significant pricing declines in the 
U.S. will occur in the oil plays;

�� The expectation that pricing and 
activity levels will hold steady 
for our crews in the Barnett and 
Marcellus regions during the first 
quarter of 2015; 

�� The expectation that our pricing 
in Canada and the U.S. will be 
under pressure throughout the 
remainder of 2015;

�� The belief that the extent of 
pricing declines in North America 
will depend on activity levels and, 
more importantly, our ability to 
reduce costs;

�� The expectation that Russian 
activity will be up slightly 
compared to 2014 due to the 
commitment of our Russian 
customers to maintain production 
levels, despite the drop in oil 
prices; 

�� The expectation that the value 
of the Russian ruble relative to 
the Canadian dollar will have a 
significant impact on Russian 
financial results in 2015;

�� The expectation that revenue 
and operating income for our 
Russian operations will be 40% 
to 50% lower in 2015 relative to 
2014 given the current ruble to 
Canadian dollar spot rate;

�� The expectation that we will see 
cost inflation in Russia during 2015;

�� The expectation that cost control 
measures in Russia will partially 
offset the impact of inflation 
during 2015;

�� The plan to grow our presence 
in Saudi Arabia and Australia 
during 2015 and the expectation 
that revenue will increase in both 
regions;

�� The expectation that activity 
levels in Australia will be slow 
in the first half of 2015 but are 
expected to increase later in the 
year with the development of LNG 
export facilities;

�� The belief that activity levels in all 
of our operating regions could be 
negatively impacted by low oil 
prices during 2015;

�� The belief that cash flow in 2015 
will be significantly influenced by 
changes to working capital and 
capital expenditures; 

�� The expectation that slowing 
market conditions will result 
in substantial working capital 
reductions during 2015, which is 
expected to provide Trican with 
meaningful cash inflows; 

�� The belief that a conservative 
capital spending program 
combined with reductions in 
working capital will provide Trican 
with opportunities to pay down a 
significant amount of debt in 2015, 
despite the weak financial outlook;

�� The belief that Trican will manage 
through this most recent 
downturn and emerge as a 
stronger organization.
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Forward-looking information and financial outlook is 
based on current expectations, estimates, projections 
and assumptions, which we believe are reasonable but 
which may prove to be incorrect. Trican’s actual results 
may differ materially from those expressed or implied and 
therefore such forward-looking information and financial 
outlook should not be unduly relied upon. In addition to 
other factors and assumptions which may be identified in 
this document, assumptions have been made regarding, 
among other things: industry activity; the general stability 
of the economic and political environment; effect of market 
conditions on demand for the Company’s products and 
services; the ability to obtain qualified staff, equipment and 
services in a timely and cost efficient manner; the ability 
to operate its business in a safe, efficient and effective 
manner; the performance and characteristics of various 
business segments; the effect of current plans; the timing 
and costs of capital expenditures; future oil and natural gas 
prices; currency, exchange and interest rates; the regulatory 
framework regarding royalties, taxes and environmental 
matters in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates; 
and the ability of the Company to successfully market its 
products and services.

Forward-looking information and financial outlook is subject 
to a number of risks and uncertainties, which could cause 
actual results to differ materially from those anticipated. 
These risks and uncertainties include: fluctuating prices for 
crude oil and natural gas; changes in drilling activity; general 
global economic, political and business conditions; weather 
conditions; regulatory changes; the successful exploitation 
and integration of technology; customer acceptance 
of technology; success in obtaining issued patents; the 
potential development of competing technologies by 
market competitors; and availability of products, qualified 
personnel, manufacturing capacity and raw materials. The 
foregoing important factors are not exhaustive. In addition, 
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated 
in forward-looking information and financial outlook 
provided herein as a result of the risk factors set forth under 
the section entitled “Risks Factors” in our Annual Information 
Form dated March 21, 2014. Readers are also referred to the 
risk factors and assumptions described in other documents 
filed by the Company from time to time with securities 
regulatory authorities. 

Additional information regarding Trican including Trican’s 
most recent annual information form is available under 
Trican’s profile on SEDAR (www.sedar.com).

.
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Trican Well Service Ltd. is responsible for the preparation and integrity of the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements and all other information contained in these financial statements. The consolidated 
financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada and 
include amounts that are based on management’s informed judgments and estimates where necessary.

The Company maintains internal accounting control systems which are adequate to provide reasonable assurance that 
assets are safeguarded, transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorization and accounting 
records are reliable as a basis for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, monitors management’s financial and accounting policies and 
practices and the preparation of these financial statements. The Audit Committee meets periodically with external 
auditors and management to review the work of each and the propriety of the discharge of their responsibilities. 
Specifically, the Audit Committee reviews with management and the external auditors the financial statements and 
annual report of the Company prior to submission to the Board of Directors for final approval. The external auditors 
have full and free access to the Audit Committee to discuss auditing and financial reporting matters.

The shareholders have appointed KPMG LLP as the external auditors of the Company and, in that capacity, they have 
examined the financial statements for the periods ended December 31, 2014. The Auditors’ Report to the shareholders 
is presented herein.

SIGNED “DALE M. DUSTERHOFT”
DALE M. DUSTERHOFT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

SIGNED “MICHAEL A. BALDWIN”
MICHAEL A. BALDWIN
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT FINANCE AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

February 25, 2015
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KPMG LLP Telephone (403) 691-8000
205 - 5th Avenue SW  Fax (403) 691-8008
Suite 2700, Bow Valley Square 2 www.kpmg.ca
Calgary AB  T2P 4B9

To the Shareholders of Trican Well Service Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Trican Well Service Ltd., which comprise 
the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the consolidated 
statements of comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 
position of Trican Well Service Ltd. as at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and its consolidated fi nancial 
performance and its consolidated cash fl ows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards.

Chartered Accountants
Calgary, Canada

February 25, 2015
KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member fi rm of the KPMG
network of independent member fi rms affi  liated with KPMG International Cooperative
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.  KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.

KPMG Confi dential
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(stated in thousands) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
ASSETS
Current assets
	 Cash and cash equivalents (note 3) $82,423 $63,869
	 Trade and other receivables (note 4) 627,749 459,210
	 Current tax assets 837 5,186
	 Inventory (note 5) 245,358 232,898
	 Prepaid expenses 32,647 34,407

989,014 795,570
Property and equipment (note 6) 1,286,754 1,374,212
Intangible assets (note 7) 36,251 44,285
Deferred tax assets (note 14) 162,411 122,745
Other assets (note 8) 6,399 17,360
Goodwill (note 7) 56,035 59,475

$2,536,864 $2,413,647

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
	 Trade and other payables (note 9) $367,619 $301,920
	 Deferred consideration - 650
	 Current tax liabilities (note 14) 898 14
	 Current portion of loans and borrowings (note 10) 19,335 79,770

387,852 382,354

Loans and borrowings (note 10) 758,545 593,786
Deferred tax liabilities (note 14) 104,240 87,005

Shareholders’ equity
	 Share capital  (note 11) 571,050 559,723
	 Contributed surplus 67,846 63,074
	 Accumulated other comprehensive loss (note 11) (26,462) (1,020)
	 Retained earnings 672,846 725,172
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 1,285,280 1,346,949
Non-controlling interest 947 3,553

$2,536,864 $2,413,647

Contractual obligations (note 18)
Contingencies (note 21)
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNED “DALE M. DUSTERHOFT”
DALE M. DUSTERHOFT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

SIGNED “KEVIN L. NUGENT”
KEVIN L. NUGENT
DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE loss

(stated in thousands, except per share amounts) December 31, 20143 December 31, 2013

Revenue $2,703,858 $2,115,472
Cost of sales 2,529,760 2,043,489
Gross profit 174,098 71,983
Administrative expenses 122,476 114,836
Other expenses 4,007  136
Results from operating activities 47,615 (42,989)
Finance income (2,586) (1,748)
Finance costs 39,698 34,497
Foreign exchange loss / (gain) 15,038 (4,859)
Asset impairments, net (notes 6 and 7) 7,017 4,123
Loss before income tax (11,552) (75,002)
Income tax recovery (note 14) (2,692) (28,303)
Loss for the year ($8,860) ($46,699)

Other comprehensive (loss) / income
	 Unrealized (loss) / gain on hedging instruments (2,377) (717)
	 Foreign currency translation (loss) / gain (23,067) 23,797
Total comprehensive (loss) / income ($34,304) ($23,619)

Loss attributable to:
	 Owners of the Company (5,045) (45,854)
	 Non-controlling interest (3,815) (845)
Loss for the year ($8,860) ($46,699)

Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
	 Owners of the Company (30,489) (22,774)
	 Non-controlling interest (3,815) (845)
Total comprehensive loss ($34,304) ($23,619)

Loss per share (note 12)
	 Basic ($0.03) ($0.31)
	 Diluted ($0.03) ($0.31)
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 149,286 148,815
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 149,286 148,815

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

 
 
 
(Stated in thousands)

Share 
capital

Contributed 
surplus

Accumulated 
other 

comprehensive 
loss

Retained 
earnings Total

Non- 
Controlling 

interest
Total 

Equity

Balance at January 1, 2013 $527,860 $55,352 ($24,100) $815,700 $1,374,812 $1,103 $1,375,915
Loss for the period - - - (45,854) (45,854) (845) (46,699)
Foreign currency translation gain - - 23,797 - 23,797 - 23,797
Dividends to equity holders ($0.30 per share annually) - - - (44,674) (44,674) - (44,674)
Share-based payments transactions - 8,096 - - 8,096 - 8,096
Share options exercised 1,548 (374) - - 1,174 - 1,174
Shares issued for business acquisition 30,315 - - - 30,315 - 30,315
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedge - - (717) - (717) - (717)
Shares cancelled under NCIB - - - - - - -
Investment in subsidiary - - - - - 3,295 3,295
Balance at December 31, 2013 $559,723 $63,074 ($1,020) $725,172 $1,346,949 $3,553 $1,350,502

Balance at January 1, 2014 $559,723 $63,074 ($1,020) $725,172 $1,346,949 $3,553 $1,350,502
Loss for the period - - - (5,045) (5,045) (3,815) (8,860)
Foreign currency translation loss - - (23,065) - (23,065) (2) (23,067)
Dividends to equity holders ($0.30 per share annually) - - - (44,803) (44,803) - (44,803)
Share-based payments transactions - 8,026 - - 8,026 - 8,026
Share options exercised 13,517 (3,254) - - 10,263 - 10,263
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedge - - (2,377) - (2,377) - (2,377)
Shares cancelled under NCIB (2,190) - - (2,478) (4,668) - (4,668)
Investment in subsidiary - - - - - 1,211 1,211
Balance at December 31, 2014 $571,050 $67,846 ($26,462) $672,846 $1,285,280 $947 $1,286,227

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Stated in thousands) December 31, 2014 2013
Cash Provided By / (Used In):
Operations
	 Loss for the year ($8,860) ($46,699)
	 Charges to income not involving cash:
		  Depreciation and amortization 209,056 222,403
		  Amortization of debt issuance costs 866 864
		  Stock-based compensation 8,026 8,096
		  (Gain) / loss on disposal of property and equipment (400) 293
		  Net finance costs 37,112 32,749
		  Unrealized foreign exchange loss / (gain) 13,722 (5,593)
		  Impairments, net 7,017 6,993
		  Income tax recovery (2,692) (28,303)

263,847 190,803
	 Change in inventories (32,776) (15,874)
	 Change in trade and other receivables (210,899) (13,251)
	 Change in prepayments 1,707 138
	 Change in trade and other payables 61,683 70,950
Cash generated from operating activities 83,562 232,766

	 Interest paid (39,287) (34,794)
	 Income tax paid (335) (26,039)

43,940 171,933
Investing
	 Interest received 5,813 1,155
	 Purchase of property and equipment (90,012) (107,761)
	 Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment 1,911 6,520
	 Purchase of other assets - (7,000)
	 Payment of deferred consideration (650) -
	 Business acquisitions - (29,663)

(82,938) (136,749)

Financing
	 Net proceeds from issuance of share capital 10,263 1,174
	 Repurchase and cancellation of shares under NCIB (4,668) -
	 Issuance / (repayment) of long-term debt, net of debt issuance costs 160,898 (42,317)
	 Funds received from senior notes 19,550 -
	 Repayment of senior notes (80,483) -
	 Dividend paid (44,775) (44,304)

60,785 (85,447)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (3,233) 626

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,554 (49,637)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 63,869 113,506
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $82,423 $63,869

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 1 – NATURE OF BUSINESS and 
BASIS OF PREPARATION

Nature of Business
Trican Well Service Ltd. (the “Company” or “Trican”) is an 
oilfield services company incorporated under the laws 
of the province of Alberta. These consolidated financial 
statements include the accounts of the Company and 
its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned, with 
the exception of Saudi Arabia, in which Trican has a 
70% ownership, Colombia, in which Trican has an 80% 
ownership, and Trican GeoTomo Microseismic Ltd., in which 
Trican has a 75% ownership (together referred to as the 
“Company”). The Company provides a comprehensive 
array of specialized products, equipment, services and 
technology for use in the drilling, completion, stimulation 
and reworking of oil and gas wells in Canada, the U.S., and 
International operations, made up of Russia, Kazakhstan, 
Australia, Colombia, Saudi Arabia and Norway.

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB). 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
on an historical costs basis except for financial instruments 
at fair value through profit or loss and liabilities for cash-
settled share-based payment arrangements which are 
measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of 
financial position.  

The consolidated financial statements are presented in 
Canadian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest 
thousands, except where indicated.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with IFRS requires management to make 
judgments and estimates that could materially affect the 
amounts recognized in the financial statements. By their 

nature, judgments and estimates may change in light of 
new facts and circumstances in the internal and external 
environment. The following judgments and estimates 
are those deemed by management to be material to the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Judgments

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization methods are based on 
management’s judgment of the most appropriate method 
to reflect the pattern of an asset’s future economic benefit 
expected to be consumed by the Company. Among other 
factors, these judgments are based on industry standards and 
company-specific history and experience.

Impairment

Assessment of impairment is based on management’s 
judgment of whether there are internal and external factors 
that would indicate that an asset or cash generating unit is 
impaired. The determination of a cash generating unit is also 
based on management’s judgment and is an assessment 
of the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows 
independently of other assets.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

An allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded when there 
is objective evidence that the collection of the full amount 
is no longer probable under the terms of the original 
invoice. Impaired receivables are derecognized when they 
are assessed as uncollectible. Amounts estimated represent 
management’s best estimate of probability of collection of 
amounts from customers. 

Impairment of Inventories 

The Company regularly reviews the nature and quantities of 
inventory on hand and evaluates the net realizable value of 
items based on historical usage patterns, known changes to 
equipment or processes and customer demand for specific 
products. Significant or unanticipated changes in business 
conditions could impact the magnitude and timing of 
impairment recognized.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
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Estimates

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization are calculated to write off the 
cost, less estimated residual value, of assets on a systematic 
and rational basis over their expected useful lives. Estimates 
of residual value and useful lives are based on data and 
information from various sources including industry practice 
and historic experience. Expected useful lives and residual 
values are reviewed annually for any change to estimates and 
assumptions.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities contain estimates about 
the nature and timing of future permanent and temporary 
differences as well as the future tax rates that will apply to 
those differences. Changes in tax laws and rates as well as 
changes to the expected timing of reversals may have a 
significant impact on the amounts recorded for deferred tax 
assets and liabilities. Management closely monitors current 
and potential changes to tax law and bases its estimates on 
the best available information at each reporting date.

Fair Value of Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

The Company uses an option pricing model to determine 
the fair value of certain share-based payments. Inputs to the 
model are subject to various estimates relating to volatility, 
interest rates, dividend yields and expected life of the units 
issued. Fair value inputs are subject to market factors as well 
as internal estimates. The Company considers historic trends 
together with any new information to determine the best 
estimate of fair value at the date of grant.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

In determining the recoverable amount of assets subject to 
impairment testing, the Company measures the recoverable 
amount of non-financial assets as the higher of a fair value 
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Future net revenues, 
fair market value of the non-financial assets, and future cash 
flows are evaluated and calculated using various factors 
and assumptions.  The factors and assumptions used in the 
estimates are assessed for reasonableness based on the 
information available at the time the estimates are prepared. 
As circumstances change and new information becomes 
available, the estimates could change.  

There have been no material revisions to the nature of 
judgments or changes in estimates of amounts reported 

in the Company’s 2014 consolidated annual financial 
statements.

These consolidated financial statements were approved by 
the Board of Directors on February 25, 2015.

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT           
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies 
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements. 

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The 
financial results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated 
financial statements from the date that control commences 
until the date that control ceases.  All inter-company balances 
and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the 
issue of debt or equity securities, that the Company incurs 
in connection with a business combination are expensed as 
incurred. 

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified 
separately from the Company’s equity therein. The interests of 
non-controlling shareholders may be initially measured either 
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate 
share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. 
The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis.  Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying 
amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those 
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ 
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive 
income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this 
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 
Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as 
transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity 
holders and therefore no goodwill is recognized as a result of 
such transactions. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
The Company’s short-term deposits with original maturities 
of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents 
and are recorded at cost, which approximates fair market value. 
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an 
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integral part of the Company’s cash management are included 
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose 
of the statement of cash flows.

Inventory
Inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value. The cost of inventory is determined using the standard 
cost method. Inventory balances include all costs of purchase, 
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventory to its existing location and condition. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling prices in the 
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion 
and selling expenses. 

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  Cost 
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the asset, and subsequent expenditure to the 
extent that they can be measured and future economic 
benefit is probable. The carrying values of replaced parts are 
derecognized when they are replaced. The cost of replacing 
a part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in 
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future 
economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the 
Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. Repairs and 
maintenance expenditures which do not extend the useful life 
of the property and equipment are expensed in the period in 
which they are incurred. 

Management bases the estimate of the useful life and 
salvage value of property and equipment, with the exception 
of land which is not depreciated, on expected utilization, 
technological change and effectiveness of maintenance 
programs. When parts of an item of property or equipment 
have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate 
items (major components) of property and equipment. 
Although management believes the estimated useful lives 
of the Company’s property and equipment are reasonable, it 
is possible that changes in estimates could occur which may 
affect the expected useful lives and salvage values of the 
property and equipment. 

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property and 
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from 
disposal with the carrying amount of property and equipment, 
and are recognized net within other income in profit or loss. 

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item 
of property and equipment, since this most closely reflects 
the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset. 

Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of 
the lease term and their useful lives unless it is expected that 
the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease 
term.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method 
over the estimated useful life less residual value of the asset as 
follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 years

Equipment 5 to 10 years

Furniture and fixtures 2 to 10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate. 

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non financial assets 
except inventory, prepaid expenses and deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 
is an indicator of impairment. If any such indication exists, then 
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable 
amount of goodwill is estimated yearly in the fourth quarter, or 
more frequently, if triggers are identified.  

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit 
(CGU) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs 
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a weighted average 
cost of capital that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of 
an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.  Impairment 
losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated first to 
reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGUs 
and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets 
in the CGU on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized 
in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any 
indication of reversal. An impairment loss is reversed only to 
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the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been 
recognized.

Goodwill
The Company measures goodwill as the fair value of the 
consideration transferred upon an acquisition, including the 
recognized amount of any non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree, less the net recognized amount (generally fair value) 
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, all 
measured as of the acquisition date.

Goodwill is allocated to the Company’s cash generating units 
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business 
combination. Goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for 
impairment annually, or more frequently in the event that a 
trigger is identified. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is 
not reversed.

Intangible Assets
Non-compete agreements relate to the Company’s acquisitions 
and are recorded at their estimated fair value on the acquisition 
date and amortized on a straight line basis over 8 years.  

Patents and know-how relate to the Company’s acquisitions 
and are recorded at their estimated fair value on the acquisition 
date and amortized on a straight line basis over 10 years.

The “CBM Process” relates to an acquisition by the Company 
and was recorded at the estimated fair value on the acquisition 
date and amortized on a straight line basis over 10 years.

All amortization of intangible assets is charged to cost of sales 
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial Instruments

Non-Derivative Financial Assets

The Company initially recognizes loans and receivables on 
the date that they are originated. All other financial assets are 
recognized initially on the trade date at which the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the 
financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks 

and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. 
Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or 
retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or 
liability.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market. Such assets are recognized initially at fair value plus 
any directly attributable transaction costs.  Subsequent to 
initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any 
impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables 
and the loan to an unrelated third party.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and short-
term deposits with original maturities of three months or less. 

Impairment of Financial Assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s financial assets includes 
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and a 
loan to an unrelated third party reported within other assets on 
the Consolidated Statement  of Financial Position. A financial 
asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment 
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset, and that loss event had an impact on 
the estimated future cash flow resulting from that asset. 

Evidence of impairment would include default or delinquency 
by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Company 
on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise, 
indications that a debtor will enter bankruptcy, adverse 
changes in the payment status of borrowers or economic 
conditions that correlate with defaults. 

The Company evaluates impairment for financial assets 
measured at amortized cost at both a specific asset and 
collective level. All individually significant assets are assessed for 
specific impairment annually. Assets that are not individually 
significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping 
together assets with similar risk profiles. 

Impairment is assessed using historical trends of default, 
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted 
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for management’s judgment in relation to how the current 
economic and credit environment will impact losses being 
greater or less than historical trends. 

An impairment loss is determined as the difference between 
an assets’ carrying amount and the present value of future cash 
flows. Losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in 
a provision account against loans and receivables. When an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognized causes 
the amount of impairment to decrease, the recovery is reversed 
through profit and loss. 

Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date 
at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Such financial liabilities are 
recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these 
financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Transaction costs related to the 
issuance of any long term debt are netted against the carrying 
value of the associated long term debt and amortized as part 
of financing costs over the life of the debt using the effective 
interest rate method.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its 
contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.

The Company has the following non-derivative financial 
liabilities: bank loans, loans and borrowings, and trade and 
other payables.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount 
presented in the statement of financial position when, and only 
when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivative Financial Instruments, Including             
Hedge Accounting

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to manage 
its exposure to the risk associated with fluctuations in foreign 
exchange and interest rates.

The Company has designated all cross currency swap 
agreements as cash flow hedges. The Company formally 
documents all relationships between hedging instruments and 

hedged items, as well as the risk management objective and 
strategy for undertaking the hedge transaction. This process 
includes linking all derivatives that are designated in a cash 
flow hedging relationship to a specific firm commitment or 
forecasted transaction. The Company also formally assesses 
both, at inception and at each reporting date, whether 
derivatives used in hedging transactions have been highly 
effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items 
and whether those derivatives may be expected to remain 
highly effective in future periods.  

The Company calculates the fair value of the cash flow 
hedges using market forward rates reflecting the remaining 
term of the hedges at each reporting period.  Under cash 
flow hedge accounting, the effective portion of the change 
in the fair value of the hedging instrument is recognized in 
other comprehensive income (OCI) and presented within 
shareholders equity in accumulated other comprehensive 
income. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value is 
recognized in profit and loss. Upon maturity of the financial 
derivative instrument, the effective gains and losses previously 
accumulated in OCI within shareholders’ equity are recorded in 
profit and loss. 

The Company utilizes foreign denominated long-term debt 
to hedge its exposure to changes in the carrying values of the 
Company’s net investment in certain foreign operations as a 
result of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Under the accounting for hedges of a net investment in 
foreign operations, the foreign denominated long-term 
debt must be designated and documented as a hedge, and 
must be effective at inception and on an ongoing basis. The 
documentation defines the relationship between the foreign 
denominated long-term debt and the net investment in the 
foreign operations. The Company formally assesses, both at 
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the changes 
in fair value of the foreign denominated long-term debt is 
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value of the net 
investment in the foreign operations. The portion of gains 
or losses on the hedging item that is determined to be an 
effective hedge is recognized in OCI, net of tax and is limited 
to the translation gain or loss on the net investment, while the 
ineffective portion is recorded in earnings. 

If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for 
hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, 
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or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is 
discontinued prospectively. If the forecast transaction is no 
longer expected to occur, then the balance in shareholders’ 
equity is reclassified in profit or loss. 

Share Capital

Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs 
directly attributable to the issue of common shares are 
recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. 

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the 
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that 
can be reliably measured, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. 

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue comprises services and other revenue 
and is sold based on fixed or agreed upon priced purchase 
orders or contracts with the customer. Service and other 
revenue is recognized when the services are provided and 
collectability is reasonably assured. Customer contract terms 
do not include provisions for significant post-service delivery 
obligations.

Finance Income and Finance Costs

Finance income is made up of interest income on funds 
invested along with any fair value gains on financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss. Interest income is recognized as 
it is earned in profit or loss. 

Finance costs are made up of amortization of debt issue 
costs, interest expense on borrowings, fair value losses on 
financial liabilities through profit or loss, and impairment losses 
recognized on financial assets (other than trade receivables). 

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 
recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. 

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method of accounting for 
income taxes. Under the liability method, deferred income 
tax assets and liabilities are recognized as the difference 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their 
respective income tax basis (temporary differences). A deferred 
tax asset may also be recognized for the benefit expected 

from unused tax losses available for carry forward, to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable earnings will be available 
against which the tax losses can be applied. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured 
based on income tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and 
that are expected to apply in the years in which temporary 
differences are expected to be realized or settled. Deferred 
income tax assets are reviewed at each reporting period and 
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related tax benefit will be realized. 

Tax interpretations, regulations and legislation in the various 
jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries operate 
are subject to change. As such, income taxes are subject to 
measurement uncertainty and the interpretations can impact 
net earnings through the income tax expense arising from 
changes in deferred income tax assets or liabilities.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

For foreign entities whose functional currency is the Canadian 
dollar, the Company translates monetary assets and liabilities 
at period-end exchange rates, and non-monetary items are 
translated at historical rates. Income and expense accounts are 
translated at the average rates in effect during the period. Gains 
or losses from changes in exchange rates are recognized in the 
profit or loss in the period of occurrence. Foreign exchange 
gains or losses arising from a monetary item receivable from 
or payable to a foreign operation, the settlement of which is 
neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future 
and which in substance is considered to form part of the net 
investment in the foreign operation, are recognized in other 
comprehensive income in the cumulative amount of foreign 
currency translation differences.

For foreign entities whose functional currency is not the 
Canadian dollar, the Company translates assets, including 
goodwill, and liabilities at period-end rates and income and 
expense accounts at average exchange rates. Adjustments 
resulting from these translations are reflected in the 
Consolidated Statements of Other Comprehensive Income 
as unrealized gains or losses as foreign currency translation 
differences. The following foreign entities have functional 
currency different to the Canadian dollar:

�� our operations in the U.S. where the functional currency 
is the U.S. dollar;
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�� our operations in Russia, where the functional currency 
is the Russian ruble;

�� our operations in Kazakhstan, where the functional 
currency is the Kazakhstani tenge;

�� our operations in Saudi Arabia, where the functional 
currency is the Saudi riyal;

�� our operations in Australia, where the functional 
currency is the Australian dollar

�� our operations in Norway, where the functional 
currency is the Norwegian krone; and

�� our operations in Colombia, where the functional 
currency is the Colombian peso.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, the relevant amount 
in the cumulative amount of foreign currency translation 
differences is transferred to profit or loss as part of the profit 
or loss on disposal. On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that 
includes a foreign operation, the relevant proportion of such 
cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interest. 
In any other partial disposal of a foreign operation, the relevant 
proportion is reclassified to profit or loss.

Employee Benefits

Short- Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an 
undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is 
provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to 
be paid under short term cash bonuses or profit sharing plans 
if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 
to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee, and the obligation can be reliably estimated. 

Share-Based Payment Transactions

The Company has a share option plan and accounts for share 
options by expensing the fair value of share options measured 
using a Black Scholes option pricing model. The fair value of 
the share options is determined on their grant date and is 
recognized in administrative expense and in shareholders’ 
equity over the vesting period.

The Company has a deferred share unit (DSU) plan for its 
Directors. The DSUs vest immediately and the fair value of the 
liability and the corresponding expense is charged to profit 
or loss at the grant date. Subsequently, at each reporting 

date between grant date and settlement date, the fair value 
of the liability is re-measured with any changes in fair value 
recognized in profit or loss for the period.

The Company has a restricted share unit (RSU) plan for its 
employees and the fair value of the RSUs is expensed into 
profit and loss evenly over the unit vesting period. At each 
reporting date between grant date and settlement, the fair 
value of the liability is re-measured with any changes in fair 
value recognized in profit or loss for the period.  

The Company has a performance share unit plan (PSU Plan) 
for Executive Officers of the Company. Under the terms of the 
PSU Plan, performance share units (PSUs) granted thereunder 
vest when certain performance conditions are met and expire 
on a date no later than December 31 of the third calendar 
year following the calendar year in which the grant occurs. 
Management makes an assessment for each grant of PSUs 
with respect to the timing and likelihood of vesting of such 
PSUs. Upon vesting, it is the intention of the Board of Directors 
to settle at PSUs currently outstanding in cash. The fair value 
of the PSUs is expensed over the vesting period until it is 
estimated that the vesting conditions will be met, at which 
time the full value of the liability is recognized and then 
revalued each period to fair value until paid. 

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated using the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding during the 
period.  Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the 
weighted average number of shares issued and outstanding 
during the year, adjusted by the total of the additional 
common shares that would have been issued assuming 
exercise of all share options with exercise prices at or below 
the average market price for the year, offset by the reduction 
in common shares that would be purchased with the exercise 
proceeds.

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that 
engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues 
and incur expenses.  All operating results are reviewed regularly 
on a segmented basis by the Company’s Executive Officers to 
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment 
and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial 
information is available.
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Segment results that are reported to the Executive Officers 
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those 
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items 
comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses and 
public company costs.

Leased Assets

Leases for which the Company assumes substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.  
Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an 
amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present 
value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with 
the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Minimum 
lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned 
between the finance expense and the reduction of the 
outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each 
period during the lease term so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Other leases are operating leases and are not recognized in the 
Company’s statement of financial position.  Payments made 
under operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

New Standards and                                  
Interpretations Not Yet Adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards 
and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 
December 31, 2014, and have not been applied in preparing 
these consolidated financial statements.  

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, 
were issued in December, 2014 as part of IASB major initiative 
to improve presentation and disclosure in financial reports (the 
“Disclosure Initiative”).  The amendments provide additional 
guidance on materiality and aggregation, presentation of 
subtotals, the structure of the financial statements and the 
disclosure of the accounting policies. The amendments may 
be applied immediately, and become mandatory for annual 

periods beginning or after January 1, 2016. The amendments 
are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s 
financial statements.

In July, 2014 the IASB issued the complete IFRS 9, Financial 
Instruments, (IFRS 9 (2014)). Under the new standard financial 
assets are classified and measured based on the business 
model in which they are held and the characteristics of 
their contractual cash flows. It also amends the impairment 
model by introducing a new ‘expected credit loss’ model 
for calculating impairment. Further, IFRS 9 (2014) includes 
a new general hedge standard that is better aligned with 
companies’ risk management, expands the scope of the 
hedging strategies, and introduces more judgement to 
assess the effectiveness of the the hedge relationship. The 
amendments to IFRS 9 (2014) are effective for annual periods 
beginning or after January 1, 2018, and are available for early 
adoption. Management has not yet evaluated the impact of 
this new Standard on the Company’s financial statements and 
disclosures.

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, was issued 
on May 28, 2014. The Standard contains a single model that 
applies to contracts with customers and two approaches to 
recognizing revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model 
features a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions 
to determine whether, how much and when revenue is 
recognized.  New estimates and judgmental thresholds 
have been introduced, which may affect the amount and/or 
timing of revenue recognized. The Standard replaces IAS 11, 
Construction Contracts, IAS 18, Revenue, IFRIC 13, Customer 
Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction 
of Real Estate, IFRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from Customers, and 
SIC 31, Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving Advertising 
Services. The new standard is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2017. Early adoption is also 
permitted. Management has not yet evaluated the impact of 
this new Standard on the Company’s financial statements and 
disclosures.
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note 4 - TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(stated in thousands) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Trade receivables $623,589 $453,729

Allowance and doubtful accounts (7,563) (5,265)

Loans and other receivables 17,533 20,109

Total $633,559 $468,573

Non-current (note 8) 5,810 $9,363

Current $627,749 $459,210

The company’s exposure to credit risk related to trade and other receivables is disclosed in note 15.

note 5 - INVENTORY

(stated in thousands) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Chemicals and consumables $135,675 $106,071

Coiled tubing 11,688 21,674

Parts 97,995 105,153

$245,358 $232,898

The total amount of inventory recognized as cost of sales during the year was $937 million (2013 – $753 million). There 
were no significant write-downs of inventory during the years-ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(stated in thousands) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Bank balances $82,380 $63,828

Short-term deposits 43 41

Cash and cash equivalents $82,423 $63,869
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(stated in thousands)
Land and 
buildings Equipment

Fixtures and 
fittings Total

Cost

Balance at January 1, 2013 $113,397 $1,916,684 $41,299 $2,071,380

Acquisitions through business combinations - 908 - 908

Additions 22,377 68,301 5,926 96,604

Disposals (2,492) (46,136) (1,959) (50,587)

Effect of movements in exchange rates 3,441 50,086 1,169 54,696

Balance at December 31, 2013 $136,723 $1,989,843 $46,435 $2,173,001

Additions 38,906 44,670 5,550 89,126
Disposals (3,588) (45,689) (158) (49,435)
Effect of movements in exchange rates (115) 1,261 1,437 2,583
Balance at December 31, 2014 $171,926 $1,990,085 $53,264 $2,215,275

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance at January 1, 2013 $22,918 $561,065 $28,835 $612,818

Depreciation 8,142 199,823 6,252 214,217

Disposals (828) (41,162) (914) (42,904)

Effect of movements in exchange rates 565 13,454 639 14,658

Balance at December 31, 2014 $30,797 $733,180 $34,812 $798,789

Depreciation 8,811 186,427 5,368 200,606
Disposals (1,533) (42,950) (10) (44,493)
Impairment - 3,577 - 3,577
Effect of movements in exchange rates (1,032) (27,998) (928) (29,958)
Balance at December 31, 2014 $37,043 $852,236 $39,242 $928,521

Carrying amounts

At December 31, 2013 $105,926 $1,256,663 $11,623 $1,374,212
At December 31, 2014 $134,883 $1,137,849 $14,022 $1,286,754

Included within equipment are assets held under finance leases with a gross value of $51.5 million (2013 - $53.2 million) and 
accumulated depreciation of $30.0 million (2013 - $28.8 million). The lease obligations are secured by the leased equipment. At 
December 31, 2014, Trican had $139.4 million in assets under construction. At December 31, 2014, the Company recorded $3.6 
million of impairment losses (2013 – nil).

note 6 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
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(stated in thousands)
Patents and 

know-how
Non-compete 

agreements CBM Process
Total intangible 

assets
Cost

Balance at January 1, 2013 $- $22,993 $8,500 $31,493

Acquisitions through business combinations 41,894 - - 41,894

Effect of movements in exchange rates - 1,436 - 1,436

Balance at December 31, 2013 $41,894 $24,429 $8,500 $74,823

Balance at January 1, 2014 $41,894 $24,429, $8,500 $74,823
Effect of movements in exchange rates - 2,017 - $2,017
Balance at December 31, 2014 $41,894 $26,446 $8,500 $76,840

Amortization and impairment losses

Balance at January 1, 2013 $- $16,525 $4,887 $21,412

Amortization 4,189 3,146 850 8,185

Effect of movements in exchange rates - 941 - 941

Balance at December 31, 2013 $4,189 $20,612 $5,737 $30,538

Balance at January 1, 2014 $4,189 $20,612 $5,737 $30,538
Amortization 4,191 3,408 850 8,449
Effect of movements in exchange rates - 1,602 - 1,602
Balance at December 31, 2014 $8,380 $25,622 $6,587 $40,589

Carrying amounts

At December 31, 2013 $37,705 $3,817 $2,763 $44,285
At December 31, 2014 $33,514 $824 $1,913 $36,251

note 7 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Goodwill 
(stated in thousands) Amount
Carrying value, January 1, 2013 $43,689

Acquisition through business combinations 22,558

Impairment (6,312)

Effect of movements in exchange rates (460)

Carrying value, December 31, 2013 $59,475

Impairment (3,440)

Carrying value, December 31, 2014 $56,035

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and intangible assets are allocated to the Company’s cash generating 
units.
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(stated in thousands) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Canada - fracturing and other $14,776 $18,216

International - fracturing and other 14,226 14,226

Trican Completion Solutions 22,558 22,558

Other units without significant goodwill 4,475 4,475

Total goodwill $56,035 $59,475

The aggregate carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each unit is as follows:

The Company performed an impairment test on its cash 
generating units at December 31, 2014. The Company 
recorded an asset impairment of $7.0 million during the annual 
impairment testing process in the year ended December 31, 
2014 (2013 - $6.3 million).

The recoverable amount was determined by discounting 
the future cash flows to be generated from the continuing 
operations of each cash generating unit, to which goodwill 
has been allocated, using a 5-year model, a discount rate of 
10.1% and a terminal value growth of 1.5%. Revenue and cash 
flow assumptions were based on a combination of past results 
and expectations of future growth. The recoverable amount 
of each cash generating unit was in excess of the carrying 
amount with the exception of the following:

�� The Company identified that the recoverable amount 
of the Coiled Tubing cash generating unit within the 
Canadian operations was less than its carrying amount. 
As a result, a goodwill impairment charge of $3.4 million 
and an asset impairment charge of $1.6 million were 
recorded. The Company used the fair value less cost of 
disposal method to calculate the recoverable amount.

�� The Company identified that the recoverable amount 
of the Australian cash generating unit within the 

International operations was below its carrying amount. 
An impairment charge of $2.0 million was recorded 
against property and equipment in the Australian cash 
generating unit. The Company used the fair value less 
cost of disposal method to calculate the recoverable 
amount. 

An increase in the discount rate used by 1% would require 
additional impairment charge being recognized on the cash 
generating units above and the Coiled Tubing cash generating 
unit within the US operation.

note 8 - OTHER ASSETS

At December 31, 2014, the Company had a U.S.$9.3 million 
secured, interest bearing first mortgage real estate loan (the 
“loan”) to an unrelated third-party located in the U.S. (2013 – 
U.S.$14.0 million).

The non-current portion of the loan of U.S. $5.0 million (2013 
- U.S. $9.4 million) has been included in other assets on the 
consolidated statement of financial position. The current 
portion of the loan of U.S. $4.3 million (2013 - U.S. $4.6 million) 
has been included in trade and other receivables on the 
consolidated statement of financial position.
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note 9 - trade and other payables

(stated in thousands) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Trade payables $183,969 $160,098

Accrued liabilities 103,956 53,888

Liabilities for cash-settled share-based payments (note 13) 10,776 19,443

Dividend payable 22,366 22,338

Finance lease obligations 10,222 11,938

Other payables 36,330 34,215

Total trade and other payables $367,619 $301,920

The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed in note 15.

note 10 - LOANS AND BORROWINGS

(stated in thousands) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Notes payable $426,897 $456,935

Finance lease obligations 21,423 25,904

Revolving credit facilities 357,260 212,625

Hedge receivable (17,478) (9,970)

Total $788,102 $685,494

Current portion of finance lease obligations (1) 10,222 11,938

Current portion of loans and borrowings 19,335 79,770

Non-current $758,545 $593,786

(1)  Current portion of finance lease obligations is included in trade and other payables.

Trican has a $575 million four-year extendible revolving credit 
facility (“Revolving Credit Facility”) with a syndicate of banks. 
The Revolving Credit Facility is unsecured and bears interest 
at the applicable Canadian prime rate, U.S. prime rate, Banker’s 
Acceptance rate, or at LIBOR, plus 50 to 325 basis points, 
dependent on certain financial ratios of the Company. On 
July 17, 2014, Trican added two additional banks to its banking 
syndicate and increased its Revolving Credit Facility from $500.0 
million to $575.0 million. On October 31, 2014, the Revolving 
Credit facility was extended by an additional year to 2018. The 
undrawn amount of the revolving Credit Facility is $217.7 million 
(2013 - $286.2 million).

The Revolving Credit Facility also has an Accordion feature 
which allows the total commitment to be increased by up to 
an additional $175 million, subject to credit approval.

The Revolving Credit Facility requires Trican to comply with 
certain financial and non-financial covenants that are typical for 
this type of arrangement. Trican was in compliance with these 
covenants at December 31, 2014 (2013 – in compliance).

Trican has a $20 million Letter of Credit facility with a major 
international bank.  As at December 31, 2014, Trican had $2.9 
million in letters of credit outstanding (2013 - $4.3 million). 
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Notes payable

As at December 31, 2014, Trican had the following Senior Unsecured Notes outstanding:

Senior Unsecured Notes Amount Date Issued Maturity Rate
Series C CAD $45 million April 28, 2011 April 28, 2016 5.22%

Series D CAD $15 million April 28, 2011 April 28, 2021 6.11%

Series E USD $65 million April 28, 2011 April 28, 2016 4.61%

Series F USD $80 million April 28, 2011 April 28, 2018 5.29%

Series G USD $105 million April 28, 2011 April 28, 2021 5.90%

Series A USD $16.67 million November 19, 2012 November 19, 2015 4.05%

Series A USD $16.67 million November 19, 2012 November 19, 2017 4.05%

Series A USD $16.67 million  November 19, 2012 November 19, 2019 4.05%

Series H CAD $ 20 million September 3, 2014 September 03, 2024 5.75%

On June 22, 2014, Trican repaid U.S. $75 million, retiring its 2007 
Series B Senior Notes, bearing interest at a fixed rate of 6.10% 
payable semi-annually on June 22 and December 22.

All Senior Unsecured Notes require the Company to comply 
with certain financial and non-financial covenants that are 
typical for this type of arrangement. Trican was in compliance 
with these covenants at December 31, 2014 (2013 – in 
compliance).

Finance Lease Liabilities
As at December 31, 2014 As at December 31, 2013

(stated in thousands)

Total future 
minimum 

lease 
payments

Interest 
payments

Minimum   
lease    

payments

Total future 
minimum   

lease   
payments

Interest 
payments

Minimum   
lease   

payments
Less than one year $10,933 $711 $10,222 $12,761 $823 $11,938

Between one and five years 11,947 746 11,201 14,485 519 13,966

More than five years - - - - - -

Total $22,880 $1,457 $21,423 $27,246 $1,342 $25,904

note 11 - SHARE CAPITAL AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Share Capital

Authorized:
The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares, issuable in series. The shares have no par value. All 
issued shares are fully paid:
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Normal Course Issuer Bid

The Company received approval from the Toronto Stock 
Exchange to purchase its own common shares, for 
cancellation, in accordance with a Normal Course Issuer 
Bid (“NCIB”) that expires on March 12, 2015. During the year 
ended December 31, 2014, there were 549,225 common 
shares purchased through the NCIB (2013 – nil). 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Foreign Currency Translation Differences

The foreign currency translation differences comprise all 
foreign currency differences arising from the translation of 

Issued and Outstanding - Common Shares:

(stated in thousands, except per share amounts) Number of Shares Amount
Balance, January 1, 2013 146,450,177 $527,860
Exercise of stock options 86,488 1,174
Reclassification from contributed surplus on exercise of options - 374
Shares issued for acquisition 2,381,381 30,315
Balance, December 31, 2013 148,918,046 $559,723
Exercise of stock options 736,899 9,937
Reclassification from contributed surplus on exercise of options - 3,580
Shares repurchased and cancelled under NCIB (549,225) (2,190)
Balance, December 31, 2014 149,105,720 $571,050

the financial statements of foreign operations, as well as the 
translation of the liabilities that hedge the Company’s net 
investment in a foreign operation. At December 31, 2014, 
the Company had accumulated foreign currency translation 
loss of $24.1 million (2013 - $0.3 million loss).

Unrealized Loss on Cash Flow Hedge

The unrealized loss on cash flow hedge comprises the 
effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair 
value of cash flow hedges related to hedged transactions 
that have not yet affected profit or loss. At December 31, 
2014, the Company had an unrealized loss on cash flow 
hedge of $3.6 million (2013 - $1.2 million loss).

(stated in thousands, except share and per share amounts) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Basic Loss Per Share

Net loss available to common shareholders ($5,045) ($45,854)

Weighted average number of common shares 149,286,035 148,815,362

Basic loss per share ($0.03) ($0.31)

Diluted Loss Per Share

Net loss available to common shareholders ($5,045) ($45,854)

Weighted average number of common shares 149,286,035 148,815,362

Diluted effect of stock options - -

Diluted weighted average number of common shares 149,286,035 148,815,362

Diluted loss per share ($0.03) ($0.31)

All of the outstanding options have been excluded from the diluted weighted-average number of common shares as the 
Company ended at a net loss in 2014 and 2013.

note 12 - LOSS PER SHARE
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note 13 - SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The Company has four stock-based compensation plans which 
are described below.

Incentive Stock Option Plan (Equity-Settled):

Options may be granted at the discretion of the Board of 
Directors and all officers and employees of the Company are 
eligible for participation in the Plan. The option price equals 
the volume-weighted-average closing price of the Company’s 
shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange, for the five trading 
days preceding the date of grant. Options granted in 2010 and 
thereafter vest on three equal tranches on each of the first, 

second and third anniversary dates with an expiry date of five 
years from the date of the grant. 

The compensation expense that has been recognized in 
profit for the year is $8.0 million (2013 - $8.1 million).  The 
corresponding amount has been recognized in contributed 
surplus. The weighted average grant date fair value of options 
granted during 2014 has been estimated at $3.56 per option 
(2013 - $3.49) using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. 
Expected volatility is estimated by considering historic average 
share price volatility. The Company has applied the following 
assumptions in determining the fair value of options for grants 
during the years ended:

For the year ended December 31, 2014 2013
Share price $14.40 $13.95

Exercise price $14.40 $13.95

Expected life (years) 3.43 3.2

Expected volatility 38% 40%

Risk-free interest rate 1.3% 1.3%

Forfeitures 6.7% 6.3%

Dividend yield 2.9% 2.2%

The Company has reserved 14,910,572 common shares as 
at December 31, 2014, (December 31, 2013 – 14,891,805) 
for issuance under a stock option plan for officers and 
employees. The maximum number of options permitted 
to be outstanding at any point in time is limited to 10% of 
the Common Shares then outstanding. As of December 31, 
2014, 10,461,818 options (December 31, 2013 – 9,411,947) were 

outstanding at exercise prices ranging from $9.84 - $22.67 per 
share with expiry dates ranging from 2015 to 2019.

The following table provides a summary of the status of the 
Company’s stock option plan and changes during the years 
ending December 31:

2014 2013

Options
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price Options
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price
Outstanding at the beginning of year 9,411,947 $15.35 7,168,279 $15.91

Granted 2,770,450 14.40 2,942,825 13.95

Exercised (736,899) 13.93 (86,488) 13.58

Forfeited (983,680) 15.40 (611,419) 15.38

Expired - - (1,250) 17.24

Outstanding at the end of the year 10,461,818 $15.19 9,411,947 $15.35

Exercisable at end of year 5,632,900 $16.18 4,807,089 $16.20

The weighted-average share price for the year ended December 31, 2014, was $12.56 (2013 - $13.95).
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Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices
Number  

Outstanding
Weighted Average 

Remaining Life
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price
Number  

Exercisable
Weighted Average 

Exercisable Price
$9.00 to $14.00 4,077,017 3.25 $12.91 1,363,020 $12.29

$14.01 to $17.00 4,669,417 0.04 14.98 2,626,493 14.95

$17.01 to $20.00 271,334 0.05 18.21 199,337 18.27

$20.01 to $23.00 1,444,050 1.28 21.78 1,444,050 21.78

$9.00 to $23.00 10,461,818 2.53 $15.19 5,632,900 $16.18

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2014:

Deferred Share Unit Plan (Cash-Settled)

Under the terms of the deferred share unit plan, DSUs 
awarded will vest immediately and will be settled with cash 
in the amount equal to the closing price of the Company’s 
common shares on the date the director specifies upon 
tendering his resignation from the Board, which in any event 
must be after the date on which the notice of redemption 
is filed with the Company and within the period from the 
Director’s resignation date to December 15 of the first 
calendar year commencing after the Director’s termination 
date. There were 403,279 DSUs outstanding at December 31, 
2014 (2013 – 333,469).

Restricted Share Unit Plan (Cash-Settled)

Under the terms of the restricted share unit plan, the RSUs 
awarded will vest in three equal portions on the first, 
second and third anniversary of the grant date and will 
be settled in cash in the amount equal to the volume-
weighted-average trading price for the twenty trading days 
preceding the particular vesting date of the award. The 
fair value of the RSUs is expensed into income evenly over 
the same period that the units vest and at each reporting 
date between grant date and settlement, the fair value of 
the liability is re-measured with any changes in fair value 
recognized in profit or loss for the period. All officers and 

employees of the Company are eligible for participation 
in the plan. There were 2,417,536 RSUs outstanding at 
December 31, 2014 (2013 – 2,091,558).

Performance Share Unit Plan (Cash-Settled)

Under the terms of the performance share unit plan, 
grants awarded will vest in three equal portions on the 
first, second and third anniversary of the grant date if 
the Company meets certain financial targets and expire 
otherwise. PSU grants will be settled in cash, at Trican’s 
discretion, in the amount equal to the volume-weighted-
average trading price for the five trading days preceding 
the particular vesting date of the Common Shares of the 
Company.  The fair value of the PSUs is expensed into 
income evenly over the same period that the units vest and 
at each reporting date between grant date and settlement, 
the fair value of the liability is re-measured with any changes 
in fair value recognized in profit or loss for the period.  There 
were 456,042 PSUs outstanding at December 31, 2014 (2013 
– 368,612). As of the date of these financial statements the 
Company’s intention is to settle the PSUs in cash.

The following table provides a summary of the status of the 
Company’s cash-settled compensation plans and changes 
during the years ending December 31:
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Deferred Share Unit Restricted Share Unit Performance Share Unit

Balance, January 1, 2013 276,586 1,743,249 155,200

Granted 56,883 1,282,773 294,600

Exercised - (599,150) (8,922)

Forfeited - (335,314) (8,650)

Expired - - (63,616)

Balance, December 31, 2013 333,469 2,091,558 368,612

Granted 69,810 2,257,654 218,200

Exercised - (1,073,499) -

Forfeited - (858,177) -

Expired - - (130,770)

Balance, December 31, 2014 403,279 2,417,536 456,042

Vested at December 31, 2014 403,279 57,215 -

(stated in thousands)
December 31, 2014 2013

Stock based compensation expense $8,026 $8,096

Expense arising from Deferred Share Units (1,782) 700

Expense arising from Restricted Share Units 5,370 12,564

Expense arising from Performance Share Units (659) 1,233

Total expense related to share based payments $10,955 $22,593

Total expense related to cash-settled arrangements $10,776 $19,443

 

NOTE 14 - INCOME TAXES 
(stated in thousands)

For the year ended December 31, 2014 2013
Current tax expense / (recovery)
	 Current year $10,766 $16,836
	 Adjustment for prior years (1,234) (1,401)
	 Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses (2,573) (1,675)

$6,959 $13,760
Deferred income tax expense / (recovery)
	 Deferred tax expense / (recovery) recognized in the current year ($7,493) ($42,282)

	 Adjustment for prior years 719 219

	 Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses   (2,877) -

($9,651) ($42,063)

Total tax recovery ($2,692) ($28,303)

(stated in thousands)
For the year ended December 31, 2014 2013
Canada $72,105 $40,988
Foreign (83,657) (115,990)

($11,552) ($75,002)

Loss Before Income Taxes
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(stated in thousands)

For the year ended December 31, 2014 2013
Expected combined federal and provincial income tax ($2,923) ($18,946)
Statutory and other rate differences (7,949) (15,862)
Non-deductible expenses 5,355 3,200
Stock-based compensation 2,026 2,045
Translation of foreign subsidiaries (1,033) (85) 
Adjustments related to prior years (514) (1,182)
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses (5,450) (1,675)
Unrecognized current year losses 7,005 3,698
Changes to deferred income tax rates 791 517
Other - (13) 

($2,692) ($28,303)

The income tax expense differs from that expected by applying the combined federal and provincial income tax rate of 
25.30% (2013 – 25.26%) to income before income taxes for the following reasons:

The combined Federal and Provincial statutory tax rate in Canada increased slightly from 2013 to 2014 due to changes in 
the provincial allocation of earnings in Canada. No rate changes have been substantively enacted for future years as at 
December 31, 2014.

Unrecognized Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items:

(stated in thousands)
For the year ended December 31, 2014 2013
Tax losses (capital in nature) $6,956 $4,237
Tax losses (income in nature) 20,284 12,057
Other temporary differences 604 -

$27,844 $16,294

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the assets can be recovered. At December 31, 
2014, the Company had $55.0 million (2013 - $33.5 million) of capital losses available for carry forward which may only be 
used to offset future capital gains. The deferred tax asset not recognized in respect of these losses was $7.0 million (2013 - $ 
4.2 million).
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Deferred Tax Balances

The components of the deferred tax asset and liability are as follows:

(stated in thousands)

For the year ended December 31, 2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:
	 Goodwill $35,652 $35,507
	 Non-capital loss carry forwards 219,378 156,470
	 Property, equipment and other assets (99,080)  (73,077)
	 Other 6,461 3,845

$162,411 $122,745
Deferred tax liabilities:
	 Property, equipment and other assets ($41,042) ($38,902)

	 Partnership deferral (56,036) (41,031)

	 Other (7,162) (7,072)

($104,240) ($87,005)

Total tax recovery $58,171 $35,740

Included in the above tax pools are $596.9 million (2013 
- $428.4 million) of gross non-capital losses that can be 
carried forward to reduce taxable income in future years. 
These losses are predominantly in the United States and 
expire between 2029 and 2034.  Deferred tax assets are 
recognized only to the extent it is considered probable that 
those assets will be recoverable. This involves an assessment 
of when those deferred tax assets are likely to reverse, and 
a judgment as to whether or not there will be sufficient 
taxable profits available to offset the tax assets when they 

do reverse. This requires assumptions regarding future 
profitability and is therefore inherently uncertain.

Deferred tax liabilities of $5.9 million (2013 - $5.6 million) 
have not been recognized on the unremitted earnings of 
the Company’s foreign subsidiaries to the extent that the 
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary differences, and it is probable that the temporary 
differences would not reverse in the foreseeable future.

January        
1, 2013

Recognized 
in Profit or 

Loss Other
December 

31, 2013

Recognized 
in Profit or 

Loss Other
December 

31, 2014
Goodwill $36,297 ($790) $- $35,507 $145 $- $35,652
Intangible assets (1,064) 1,835 (11,735) (10,964) 1,416 - (9,548)
Non-capital loss carry forwards 93,211 63,259 - 156,470 62,908 - 219,378
Property and equipment (92,030) (19,949) -  (111,979) (28,143) - (140,122)
Partnership deferral (42,362) 1,331 - (41,031) (15,005) - (56,036)
Share issue costs 1,047 (531) - 516 (499) - 17
Unrealized foreign exchange loss  64 6 - 70 (56) - 14
Employee benefits 3,774 1,366 - 5,140 (2,373) - 2,767
Other 353                      (4,464) 6,122 2,011 (8,742) 12,780 6,049

($710) $42,063 ($5,613) $35,740 $9,651 $12,780 $58,171

Movement in Deferred Tax Balances During the Year
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(stated in thousands)
December 31, 2013

Cash flow 
hedging 

instruments

Loans and 
receivables

Other    
financial 
liabilities

Total  
carrying     

value

Total  
fair value

Cash and cash equivalents $- $63,869 $- $63,869 $63,869
Trade and other receivables(1) - 454,615 - 454,615 454,615
Loan to an unrelated third party - 13,958 - 13,958 13,958
Cash flow hedge 9,970 - - 9,970 9,970

$9,970 $532,442 $- $542,412 $542,412

Trade and other payables(2) $- $- $289,984 $289,984 $289,984
Deferred consideration - - 650 650 650
Current portion of loans and borrowings - - 79,770 79,770 81,019
Revolving credit facility - - 212,625 212,625 221,258
Notes payable - - 377,166 377,166 390,247
Finance lease obligations - - 25,904 25,904 27,246

$- $- $986,099 $986,099 $1,010,404
(1) Trade and other receivables excludes the current portion of the loan to an unrelated third party.
(2) Trade and other payables excludes the current portion of the finance lease obligations.

NOTE 15 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities 
The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other 
receivables, and trade and other payables included in the 
consolidated statement of financial position approximate 
their carrying amount due to the short-term maturity of 
these instruments. The fair value of deferred consideration 
approximates its carrying amount as it is revalued to fair 
value at each reporting period. 

Notes payable have a fair value of approximately $417.8 
million as at December 31, 2014, (December 31, 2013 - $471.3 

million), the short-term portion of which is $20.6 million 
(December 31, 2013 – $81.0 million). The revolving credit 
facility has a fair value of approximately $370.0 million (2013 - 
$221.3 million). The fair value of the bank loans approximate 
their carrying amount because the variable interest rates 
applied to these loans and credit spreads on the facilities 
approximate market rates. The fair value of capital lease 
obligations was determined by calculating the future cash 
flows, including interest, using market rates. The fair value 
of the loan to an unrelated third party (described in note 8) 
has a fair value of $10.8 million (2013 - $14.0 million). The fair 
value was calculated using a discounted cash flow approach 
with an effective interest rate of 12%.

Fair Value versus Carrying Value Amounts

(stated in thousands)
December 31, 2014

Cash flow 
hedging 

instruments

Loans and 
receivables

Other 
financial 

liabilities

Total  
carrying  

value

Total  
fair value

Cash and cash equivalents $- $82,423 $- $82,423 $82,423
Trade and other receivables (1) - 622,738 - 622,738 622,738
Loan to an unrelated third party - 10,821 - 10,821 10,821
Cash flow hedge 17,478 - - 17,478 17,478

$17,478 $715,982 $- $733,460 $733,460

Trade and other payables(2) $- $- $357,397 $357,397 $357,397
Current portion of loans and borrowings - - 19,335 19,335 20,608
Revolving credit facility - - 357,260 357,260 369,961
Notes payable - - 407,562 407,562 397,150
Finance lease obligations - - 21,423 21,423 22,880

$- $- $1,162,977 $1,162,977 $1,167,996
(1) Trade and other receivables excludes the current portion of the loan to an unrelated third party.
(2) Trade and other payables excludes the current portion of the finance lease obligations.
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Fair Values Hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair 
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been 
defined as follows:

�� Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities;

�� Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within 
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from 
prices); or

�� Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based 
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(stated in thousands)
December 31, 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash flow hedge $- $17,478 $- $17,478

Loan to unrelated third party - - 10,821 10,821

Total assets $- $17,478 $10,821 $28,299

Current portion of long-term debt - 20,608 - 20,608

Notes payable - 397,150 - 397,150

Revolving credit facility - 369,961 - 369,961

Finance lease obligations - 22,880 - 22,880

Total liabilities $- $810,599 $- $810,599

(stated in thousands)
December 31, 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash flow hedge $- $9,970 $- $9,970

Loan to unrelated third party - - 13,958 13,958

Total assets $ $9,970 $13,958 $23,928

Current portion of long-term debt - 81,019 - 81,019

Deferred consideration - - 650 650

Notes payable - 390,247 - 390,247

Revolving credit facility - 221,258 - 221,258

Finance lease obligations - 27,246 - 27,246

Total liabilities $- $719,770 $650 $720,420

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash 
flows of financial assets or liabilities will fluctuate due 
to movements in market rates and is comprised of the 
following:

Interest Rate Risk

An increase or decrease in interest expense for each one 
percent change in interest rates on floating rate debt would 
have been $2.8 million for the year ended December 
31, 2014 (2013 - $2.0 million), based on the average debt 
balances for the year.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

As the Company operates primarily in North America and 
Russia, fluctuations in the exchange rate between the U.S. 
dollar / Canadian dollar and Russian ruble/Canadian dollar 
can have a significant effect on the operating results and 
the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial 
assets and liabilities. 

The Company manages risk to foreign currency exposure 
by monitoring financial assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currency and foreign currency rates on an on-
going basis. Exposures to the U.S. dollar and Russian ruble 
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are mitigated by on-going operations within foreign entities 
as assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses are denominated 
primarily in local currencies. The Company also mitigates 
exposure to fluctuations in the U.S. dollar by maintaining a 
mix of both Canadian and U.S. dollar debt.

Trican has two distinct hedges, each with the purpose of 
hedging the gains and losses incurred on U.S. dollar debt 
balances. The first hedge consists of cross-currency swap 
agreements, which hedges U.S. $95 million of the U.S. 
$250 million private placement of senior unsecured notes 
(the “Notes”) which were issued during the quarter ended 
June 30, 2011. This hedge has been assessed as a highly 
effective cash-flow hedge. The foreign exchange loss on the 
hedged portion of the Notes has been recorded in other 
comprehensive income. The fair value of the cross-currency 
swap agreements at December 31, 2014, is $17.5 million 

(2013 - $9.8 million) and has been recorded net of long-term 
debt on the consolidated statement of financial position 
and as a gain in other comprehensive income. There was no 
tax impact recorded in other comprehensive income related 
to the cross currency swap agreements.

The second hedge is a net investment hedge in foreign 
operations. The Company utilizes the foreign denominated 
long-term debt to hedge its exposure to changes in the 
carrying values of the Company’s net investment in its U.S. 
operations. At December 31, 2014, the hedge was highly 
effective resulting in no gains or losses recognized in profit 
or loss (2013 - highly effective).

For the years ended December 31, fluctuations in the value 
of foreign currencies would have had the following impact 
on net income and other comprehensive income:

Impact to                                                               
Net Income

Impact to Other                  
Comprehensive Income

(stated in thousands) 2014 2013 2014 2013
1% increase in the value of the U.S. dollar 2,075 520 6,172 5,356
1% decrease in the value of the U.S. dollar (2,075) (520) (6,172) (5,356)
1% increase in the value of the Russian ruble 615 13 1,331 1,977
1% decrease in the value of the Russian ruble (615) (13) (1,331) (1,977)

Credit Risk 
Credit risk refers to the possibility that a customer or 
counterparty will fail to fulfill its obligations and as a result, 
create a financial loss for the Company.

Customer

The Company’s accounts receivables are predominantly 
with customers who explore for and develop natural gas 
and petroleum reserves and are subject to normal industry 
credit risks that include fluctuations in oil and natural gas 
prices and the ability to secure adequate debt or equity 
financing. The Company assesses the creditworthiness of 

its customers on an ongoing basis as well as monitoring the 
amount and age of balances outstanding. Accordingly, the 
Company views the credit risks on these amounts as normal 
for the industry. The carrying amount of accounts receivable 
represents the maximum credit exposure on this balance.

Payment terms with customers vary by region and contract; 
however, standard payment terms are 30 days from invoice 
date.  Historically, industry practice allows for payment up 
to 70 days from invoice date. The Company considers its 
accounts receivable excluding doubtful accounts to be 
aged as follows:

(stated in thousands)
December 31, 2014 2013
Current (0 - 30 days from invoice date) $245,558 $206,150
31 - 60 days past due 213,576 146,266
60 - 90 days past due 91,084 62,653
Greater than 90 days past due 85,094 49,406
Total $635,312 $464,475

Provision for doubtful accounts $7,563 $5,265
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(stated in thousands)
Movement in Provision for the Years Ended December 31, 2014 2013
Provision for doubtful accounts at January 1 $5,265 $4,085
Increase in provision 2,462 1,194
Write-off of provision - -
Effect of movement in exchange rates (164) (14)
Provision for doubtful accounts at December 31 $7,563 $5,265

The Company’s objectives, processes and policies for 
managing credit risk have not changed from the prior year.

Counterparties

Counterparties to financial instruments expose the 
Company to credit losses in the event of non-performance. 
Counterparties to cash transactions are limited to high 
credit-quality financial institutions. The Company does not 
anticipate non-performance that would materially impact 
the Company’s financial statements.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk the Company will encounter 
difficulties in meeting its financial liability obligations. The 
Company manages its liquidity risk through cash and debt 
management, which includes monitoring forecasts of 
the Company’s cash and cash equivalents and borrowing 
facilities on the basis of projected cash flow. This is generally 
carried out at both the consolidated and geographic region 

levels in accordance with practices and policies established 
by the Company.

In managing liquidity risk, the Company has access to a 
wide range of funding at competitive rates through capital 
markets and banks. As at December 31, 2014, the Company 
had available unused committed bank credit facilities in 
the amount of $217.7 million (2013 - $307.5 million) plus 
cash and trade and other receivables of $79.2 million (2013 
- $63.9 million) and $631.6 million (2013 - $452.0 million) 
respectively, for a total of $928.5 million (2013 - $823.4 
million) available to fund the cash outflows relating to its 
financial liabilities. The Company believes it has sufficient 
funding through the use of these sources to meet 
foreseeable borrowing requirements.

The timing of cash outflows relating to financial liabilities are 
outlined in the table below:

(stated in thousands)

December 31, 2014
Carrying 

Value
Less than 1 

Year
1 to 3  
Years

 
4 to 5  
Years

Greater 
than 5 

years
 

Total

Trade and other payables $357,395 $357,395 $- $- $- $357,395
Current portion of long-term debt 19,335 19,335 - - - 19,335
Revolving credit facility (including interest) 357,260 14,301 398,374 - - 412,675
Notes payable 407,562 - 232,550 19,335 156,811 408,696

Interest on notes payable - 22,153 44,671 19,224 6,918 92,966
Finance lease obligations (including interest) 21,423 10,933 11,947 - - 22,880

$424,117 $687,542 $38,559 $163,729 $1,313,947
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(stated in thousands)

December 31, 2013

Carrying 
Value

Less than    
1 Year

1 to 3    
Years

 
4 to 5    
Years

Greater than 
5 years

 
Total

Trade and other payables $289,984 $289,984 $- $- $- $289,984
Current portion of long-term debt 79,770 79,770 - - - 79,770
Revolving credit facility (including interest) 212,625 9,344 240,604 - - 249,948
Notes payable 377,166 - 149,587 102,815 124,764 377,166

Interest on notes payable - 22,466 48,935 17,923 10,007 99,331
Finance lease obligations (including interest) 25,904 12,761 14,485 - - 27,246

$414,325 $453,611 $120,738 $134,771 $1,123,445

NOTE 16 - CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company’s strategy is to carry a capital base to maintain 
investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain 
future development of the business. The Company seeks 
to maintain a balance between the level of long-term 
debt and shareholders’ equity to ensure access to capital 
markets to fund growth and working capital given the 

cyclical nature of the oilfield services sector. On a historical 
basis, the Company maintained and continues to maintain 
a conservative ratio of long-term debt to total capitalization. 
The Company may occasionally need to increase these 
levels to facilitate acquisition or expansionary activities. 

As at December 31, these ratios were as follows:

(stated in thousands, except ratios)
December 31, 2014 2013
Loans and borrowings $777,880 $673,556
Shareholders' equity 1,285,280 1,346,949
Total capitalization $2,063,160 $2,020,505

Long-term debt to total capitalization 0.38 0.33

The Company is subject to various financial and non-financial covenants associated with existing debt facilities. The 
covenants are monitored on a regular basis and controls are in place to maintain compliance with these covenants. The 
Company complied with all financial covenants for the year ended December 31, 2014 (December 31, 2013 – in compliance).

NOTE 17 – OPERATING LEASES
The Company has commitments for operating lease agreements, primarily for office space, with minimum payments due as 
of December 31, as follows:

(stated in thousands) Within 1 Year 1 to 5 Years After 5 years Total

2014 $20,150 $28,036 $5,417 $53,603
2013 $20,535 $30,781 $3,751 $55,067

Lease payments recognized as an expense during the period amounted to $30.6 million (2013 – $24.6 million).

NOTE 18 - CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
As at December 31, 2014, the Company has commitments totaling approximately $25.9 million (2013 - $52.4 million) relating 
to the construction of fixed assets in 2015.
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NOTE 19 - RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with Key Management Personnel
In addition to their salaries, the Company also provides 
non-cash benefits to directors and executive officers. 

Executive officers also participate in the Company’s share 
option program and performance share unit program                  
(see note 13).

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

(stated in thousands) 2014 2013
Salaries $1,895 $1,739
Share-based awards 751 1,382
Option-based awards 1,707 1,655
Non-equity annual incentive plans 189 644
All other compensation 195 195

$4,737 $5,615

NOTE 20 – OPERATING SEGMENTS
The Company operates in Canada and the U.S. along 
with a number of international regions, which include 
Russia, Kazakhstan, Australia, Saudi Arabia, Colombia and 
Norway. Each geographic region has a General Manager 
who is responsible for the operation and strategy of his 
region’s business. Personnel working within the particular 
geographic region report to the General Manager; the 
General Manager reports to the Corporate Executive.  

The Company provides a comprehensive array of 
specialized products, equipment, services and technology 
to customers through three operating divisions:

�� Canadian operations provides cementing, fracturing, 
coiled tubing, nitrogen, geological, acidizing, reservoir 
management, industrial cleaning and pipeline, and 
completion systems and downhole tool services, which 
are performed on new and existing oil and gas wells.

�� U.S. operations provides cementing, fracturing, coiled 
tubing, nitrogen, acidizing and completion systems and 
downhole tool services, which are performed on new 
and existing oil and gas wells.

�� International operations provides cementing, fracturing, 
coiled tubing, acidizing, nitrogen, and completion 
systems and downhole tool services, which are 
performed on new and existing oil and gas wells.

Information regarding the results of each geographic 
region is included below. Performance is measured 
based on revenue and gross profit as included in the 
internal management reports, which are reviewed by 
the Company’s executive management team. Each 
region’s gross profit is used to measure performance 
as management believes that such information is most 
relevant in evaluating regional results relative to other 
entities that operate within the industry. Transactions 
between the segments are recorded at cost and have been 
eliminated upon consolidation.



Trican Well Service Ltd. 

68  |  MD&A Years Ended December 31, 2013 & 2014

The Corporate division does not represent an operating segment and is included for informational purposes only.  Corporate 
division expenses consist of salary expenses, stock-based compensation and office costs related to corporate employees, as 
well as public company costs.

Year ended December 31, 2014
Canadian 

Operations
United States 

Operations
International 

Operations
 

Corporate
 

Total

Revenue $1,229,046 $1,133,895 $340,917 $- $2,703,858
Gross profit / (loss) 186,481 (10,677) 27,463 (29,169) 174,098
Finance income - - - (2,586) (2,586)
Finance costs - - - 39,698 39,698
Impairment 5,004 - 2,013 - 7,017
Tax expense / (recovery) 23,251 (26,911) 968 - (2,692)
Depreciation and amortization 70,919 109,051 26,061 3,025 209,056
Assets 924,265 1,301,089 251,536 59,974 2,536,864
Goodwill  41,809 - 14,226 - 56,035
Property and equipment 479,670 716,124 73,955 17,005 1,286,754
Capital expenditures 23,848 27,332 36,228 2,604 90,012

Year ended December 31, 2013   

Revenue $1,021,426 $764,962 $329,084 $- $2,115,472
Gross profit / (loss) 137,768 (50,537) 11,605 (26,853) 71,983
Finance income - - - (1,748) (1,748)
Finance costs - - - 34,497 34,497
Impairment 2,870 - 4,123 - 6,993
Tax expense / (recovery) 11,961 (39,054) (1,210) - (28,303)
Depreciation and amortization 89,716 103,096 27,284 2,307 222,403
Assets 963,234 1,070,487 332,041 47,885 2,413,647
Goodwill  45,248 - 14,227 - 59,475
Property and equipment 523,594 728,609 104,943 17,066 1,374,212
Capital expenditures 32,020 53,532 21,528 681 107,761

NOTE 21 – CONTINGENCIES
From time to time, Trican is subject to costs and other 
effects of legal and administrative proceedings, settlements, 
investigations, claims and actions. Trican may in the future 
be involved in disputes with other parties which could 
result in litigation or other actions, proceedings or related 
matters. The results of litigation or any other proceedings 
or related matters cannot be predicted with certainty. 
Amounts involved in such matters are not reasonably 
determinable due to uncertainty as to the final outcome. 
Trican’s assessment of the likely outcome of these matters 
is based on its judgment of a number of factors including 
experience with similar matters, past history, precedents, 

relevant financial and other evidence and facts specific to 
the matter. Notwithstanding the uncertainty as to the final 
outcome, based upon the information currently available 
to it, Trican does not currently believe these matters 
in aggregate will have a material adverse effect on its 
consolidated financial position or results of operations.  

The tax regulations and legislation in the various 
jurisdictions that the Company operates in are continually 
changing. As a result, there are usually some tax matters 
under review. Management believes that it has adequately 
met and provided for taxes based on the Company’s 
interpretation of the relevant tax legislation and regulations.
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NOTE 22- EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

(stated in thousands)
December 31, 2014 2013
Wages and salaries $522,694 $451,914
Employee benefits 90,522 78,161
Equity-settled share-based transactions (note 13) 8,026 8,096
Total $621,242 $538,171

NOTE 23 – RESEARCH AND 
DEVELOPMENT COSTS
During the year ended December 31, 2014, Trican incurred 
$45.1 million (2013 – $48.7 million) in research and 
development costs. 
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